


Have a fresh
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Vision

Become a strong community experiential retail platform
with a close partnership to all households to grow
together and achieve our 3-benefit philosophy: “Benefit
to the country, people and company”.

Mission

Establish a responsible, unified and creative Lotus family,
providing customers from our hearts the products and
services with the greatest value, to ensure that Lotus
becomes the most powerful retailer.
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Our Company
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C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”) is one of the leading retail operators in China.
CP Lotus currently owns and operates 60 retail stores and 1 shopping mall under
the brand name “Lotus”, offering fresh and pleasurable shopping experience to all
families by providing a neat and comfortable environment, an assortment of high-
quality and safe merchandise, and a warm and friendly service.

Our ultimate controlling shareholder, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CP Group”), is one of the leading conglomerates in Asia with over 90 years of
operating experience in various industries including Agro-Industry & Food, retail
and telecom. While the CP Group is headquartered in Thailand, it is one of the
largest and oldest foreign investors in China today.
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Store and Shopping Mall Network
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Tangyan Lu Store
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Changan Lu Store
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Xingsha Store
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Guangzhou
Sanyuanli Store
Tianhe Store
Huadu Store
Changxing Store
Huangshixi Lu Store
Xintong Dongling Store
Foshan
Nanhai Store
Sanshui Store
Huanggi Store
Vivo City Store
Jinshazhou Store
Lecong Store
Jiangmen
Jiangmen Store
Shantou
Changping Store
Chenghai Store
Jinping Store
Tianshan Lu Store
Dongxia Store
Lotus Center
(Shopping Mall)
Chaoyang Mianbei Store
Jieyang
Dongshan Store
Rongcheng Store
Chaozhou
Chaozhou Store
Chaoan Store
Puning
Puning Store
Meizhou
Huagiaocheng Store
Yangjiang
Yangxi Store
Zhanjiang
Dingsheng Square Store
Lianjiang Store
Zhongshan
Zhongshan Xiaolan Store
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Yanggaonan Lu Store
Chuanchang Lu Store
Wuzhong Lu Store
Shangnan Lu Store
Caoan Lu Store

Super Brand Mall Store
Wenshui Lu Store
Yanggaobei Lu Store
Songjiang Yueyang Store
Chuansha Store
Nanfeng Store
Yanggaozhong Lu Store
Jinshan Weiging Store
Yunchuan Lu Store
Pujiang Store
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Qingdao
Liaoyangxi Lu Store
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Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

| am happy to report an improved result for 2015 despite it
being a very challenging year for retail in China.

Operation Environment

The growth of China’s economy continued to ease in 2015.
Gross domestic product grew 6.9%, down from 7.3% in the
previous year and the slowest in 25 years. Growth was in line
with private sector forecasts and the Chinese government’s
official target of about 7.0 percent for the year. Although
retail sales growth cooled to 10.6 percent from 2014’s 12.0
percent, the share of total economic activity accounted for by
consumption rose to 56.4 percent, up 5.0 percentage points
from 2014, and attributable for 66.4% of the 2015 GDP
growth. The growth was largely driven by growth in spending
on online commerce which grew by 33.3% over the previous
year, supported by solid wage growth; and an encouraging
sign when the government continues to nurture a consumer
economy.

Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB10,660.4 million and a
loss attributable to equity shareholders of RMB18.0 million,
an improvement from a loss of RMB58.4 million in 2014
primarily as a result of structural cost reductions.

We opened a total of five new stores in 2015, all of which
are in the Guangdong province, adding a total sales floor
area of 35,230 square meters. We also opened a shopping
mall, LOTUS CENTER in Shantou with a building area of
approximately 33,000 square meters with one of the new
stores located in this mall. The Group currently has a network
of 60 stores and has plans to open a further six to eight
stores in 2016.

Governance

We have continued to ensure full compliance with all relevant
rules and regulations. In this annual report, the directors’
report requirements under the new Companies Ordinance
of Hong Kong (incorporated in the Listing Rules under
paragraph 28 of Appendix 16) are fully complied with. In
addition, we will adopt and comply, in a timely manner, the
various recommendations and amendments put forward by
the Stock Exchange in the consultation conclusion paper
on risk management and internal control to further improve
our polices and processes in these areas; and on review of
the environmental, social and governance reporting guide to
provide the stakeholders a deeper understanding of the non-
financial performance of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

FERES

To streamline the business and strategic development of
the Group, Mr. Li Wen Hai was re-designated as executive
chairman of the Company while Mr. Weng Hai Xin was
appointed as chief executive officer effective 1 December
2015. Mr. Weng has been working with the Group since
2003 and | am confident that he and his management team
is capable of leading the development and expansion of our
business.

Prospect

We expect the current year will continue to be very
challenging not only for the Group but also for traditional
brick-and-mortar retailers with the deflationary environment
in China likely to continue and e-commerce retailers
continue to invest in grocery retailing, which increases price
competition. However, we remain confident in China’s long
term economy and to show our commitment, we are planning
to open six to eight new stores in 2016. In the years coming,
we believe sustainable growth has to come from innovation
and technology progress. We will continuously look for more
innovative ideas and solutions to better serve the needs of
our customers and take our overall shopping experience
one step further. Mobile commerce and online and offline
integration will be some of the key aspects of the Group’s
development.

In addition, cost control remains at the heart of the
business and we remain determined that cost savings must
come through innovation and efficiency rather than any
compromise to our services.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of the Board,
to extend our appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders,
banks and vendors for their continuing trust and support, and
to every one of my colleagues across the business for their
hard work and contribution to what has been an encouraging
year for the Group. Lastly, | would also like to thank my
fellow Board members for their continued guidance and
support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

29 February 2016
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

KPIs of revenue, margin and expenses are detailed in the financial
review. Details of other key performance indicators used in the
management of the business are provided below:

RERRER(HERRRER]D

WA NERER-BRRBIEECHIINY
EORE - Htt AREREE - BRRBEEN
T

Retail selling space 2015 2014 Change
TEHEEZD —E-RE Z—ET-—NE 5 5
Store numbers IEHEE 60 55 9.1%
Square meters (' 000) EHFK(F) 726.1 662.9 9.5%

Selling space is defined as the sales floor area and area sub-leased
to others, excludes shopping mall

HEZRBEERERRR 7HETMEZEH
& BT eEBYH L

Like-for-like sales growth 2015 2014 Change
@ bt JE #8 4E & —E—-HfFE Z—ZB-OF C- X0
Sales growth HELER -3.60% 1.10% -4.70%

Like-for-like sales growth is calculated by comparing the sales
derived in the stores, which were opened over 12 full months as of
the end of two consecutive years

FIEFHER U BREAMEFR  CFHF
HBI2ZAZEHZHESE

Average customer count per day 2015 2014 Change
BHETHEEAR —E-HF =—ZET-NF 25
Customer visit FEEH 5,324 5,656 -5.9%

Average customer count is calculated as total customer count
divided by 365 days of like-for-like store

FHIBEE A K] L 8 2 B A KB 365K
iE
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWNE D
o

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% [E] B8

C.P. Lotus Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) recorded a net loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015
(the “Reporting Period”) of RMB18.0 million (2014: loss of RMB58.4
million).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERmR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F-—aF+-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014 Change Change
—E-R% —E-QmE 25 28

RMB million RMB million RMB million
AR¥BEER AREBER AREEET %
Revenue KA 10,660.4 10,912.0 (251.6) (2.3)
Gross profit £7 1,831.4 1,838.0 (6.6) (0.4)
Other revenue and other net loss Hith s R EMEETFE 491.9 4785 13.4 2.8
Distribution and store operating costs BEREREERR (1,915.1) (1,913.8) 1.9) 0.1
Administrative expenses THER (334.3) (350.0) 15.7 (4.5)
Finance costs RERAK (73.8) (76.2) 2.4 (3.1)
Income tax ik (18.2) (34.9) 16.7 (47.9)
Loss for the year FEEFR (18.1) (58.4) 40.3 (69.0)

Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEGEEEFE:

Equity shareholders of the Company KRERE (18.0) (58.4) 40.4 (69.2)
Non-controlling interests FERER (0.1) - (0.1) n/a
(18.1) (58.4) 40.3 (69.0)

Revenue fell by RMB251.6 million or 2.3% to RMB10,660.4 million.
The reduction was due to the fact that the revenue generated by five
new stores opened in 2015 was offset by the loss in revenue from
the disposal of seven loss-making stores to Whole Sino Limited
(“WSL”) on 30 April 2014 and negative 3.6% growth in same store
sales which was a result of the continued easing of the economy,
the government’s anti-waste campaign and intensified competition
from online retailers. Apparel, electronics and hardline continued to
be the worst performing categories.

Gross profit margin was 17.2% of sales (2014: 16.8%). Gross
margin is comprised of front and back margin. Front margin is sales
minus direct cost of sales; back margin represents income from
suppliers such as discounts and allowances. Front margin improved
by 0.3 percentage point to 8.2% and back margin also improved
from 8.9% to 9.0%. The improvement in front margin was mainly
the result of enhancement of the merchandise mix. Overall margin
in the fresh category was reduced due to online retailers stepping
up their investment in grocery retailing. The back margin improved
marginally as a result of lower sales, the actual amount reduced
as a result of lower volume rebate received from suppliers. During
the year under review, the Group organised five “50% off Thanks
Giving” activities which helped boost sales. Gross profit margin was
18.9% if sales to WSL were excluded (2014: 18.6%).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
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Other revenue and other net loss was RMB491.9 million or 4.6%
of sales (2014: RMB478.5 million or 4.4% of sales), comprised
mainly lease income which is income received from the leasing
of store space. Lease income increased by RMB18.6 million to
RMB432.1 million as a result of contribution from the five new
stores and a shopping mall opened during the year under review
and higher rental charged upon lease renewal. An exchange loss of
RMB68.5 million as a result of RMB depreciation since August 2015
was recorded against our US dollars (“USD”) borrowing; however,
such loss was completely offset by the gain from the USD non-
deliverable forward contract entered on 20 July 2015. The contract
matures on 22 July 2016.

Distribution and store operating costs was RMB1,915.1 million
or 18.0% of sales (2014: RMB1,913.8 million or 17.5% of sales). It
comprised mainly stores rental, personnel expenses, utilities and
depreciation and amortisation for a total of RMB1,594.1 million
and 4.9%, 6.5%, 1.8% or 1.7% of sales respectively. Personnel
expenses increased by approximately RMB12.0 million only
despite opening of five new stores and annual increase in statutory
minimum wages as a result of continued refining of cost structure
and improvement in productivity and work efficiency.

Administrative expenses was RMB334.3 million or 3.1% of sales
compared to RMB350.0 million or 3.2% of sales in 2014. It mainly
included personnel expenses of RMB260.7 million, depreciation
and amortisation charge of RMB19.0 million, rental of RMB18.5
million and professional fee of RMB6.6 million. Savings mainly from
reduction of personnel expenses amounted to RMB23.9 million.

Financial costs was RMB73.8 million, or 0.7% of sales, a reduction
of RMB2.4 million from last year.

Income tax was RMB18.2 million (2014: RMB34.9 million).

Net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB18.0 million (2014: RMB58.4 million), the improvement was due
to disciplined expenses management and increase from other net
income which overcame the effect of negative growth in same store
sales.

Front Margin
Al & R E

M Back Margin
E3=FIp: |
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Capital expenditure was RMB324.7 million for the year under
review, mainly for the opening of new stores, renovation of existing
stores and replacement of equipment. The Group financed its
capital expenditure through a combination of cash generated from
its operating activities and banking facilities.

EXABMINREEFEERAARY324,700,000
T FEEBERFER BREEHEHLES
B  AEENEBERREBITRERMEELEZ
BeHAREFHERBES -

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE PR |R

As at 31 December 2015
R=F-BF1+=F=+—H

2015 2014 Change Change
—E-%% —E-|mE #E #E
RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEETR ARBEET AREEET %
Property, plant and equipment & nE BERRER 1,797.2 1,686.4 110.8 6.6
Interests in leasehold land held for EEHEVZEAL
own use under operating leases HERR
Goodwil e 2,911.8 2,911.8 = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBReEH 165.8 140.1 25.7 18.3
Pledged bank deposits EEARTEN 59.4 71.9 (12.5) 17.4)
Inventories 7E 1,221.4 1,058.9 162.5 15.3
Trade and other receivables EEREMERGE 737.1 815.1 (78.0) (9.6)
Other assets HitEE 234.9 260.9 (26.0) (10.0)
Total Assets BEE 7,127.6 6,945.1 182.5 2.6
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,085.5 1,144.2 (58.7) (5.1)
Trade payables and other liabilities BEERNTUERHEMEAR 3,992.1 3,790.8 201.3 53
Total liabilities HEE 5,077.6 4,935.0 142.6 2.9
Net Assets BERH 2,050.0 2,010.1 39.9 2.0
Share capital e 405.7 396.1 9.6 2.4
Reserves i 1,642.7 1,612.3 30.4 1.9
Non-controlling Interests FERER 1.6 1.7 (0.1) (5.9)
Total Equity i ot 2,050.0 2,010.1 39.9 2.0

Property, plant and equipment & Interests in leasehold land held
for own use under operating lease increased, mainly because of
additions in property, plant and equipment of RMB324.7 million for
the opening of the five new stores, a shopping mall and other store
renovation; depreciation and amortisation for the year of RMB187.4
million, and because certain property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB26.3 million was disposed of or impaired
during the year under review.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Goodwill of RMB2,911.8 million represents the goodwill amount
of RMB2,477.3 million, arising from the Company’s acquisition of
the Lotus stores owned by Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain
Store Co., Ltd (“SLS”) in prior years (the “SLS acquisition”), and
the additional interest of Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. and Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd.
acquired in October 2008, and also the amount of RMB434.5 million
arising from the acquisition of four hypermarkets in Wuxi, Xuzhou,
Hefei and Changsha from WSL on 1 January 2012. The amount of
goodwill arising from the SLS acquisition reduced from RMB2,680.9
million to RMB2,438.4 million after seven stores was disposed of
on 30 April 2014. Impairment test on the goodwill value is carried
out annually based on a number of market assumptions including
discount rates, forecast growth rates and expected changes to
direct prices and selling costs. No impairment of goodwill was
recorded in 2015.

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB165.8 million as of
31 December 2015 (2014: RMB140.1 million).

Pledged bank deposits amounted to RMB59.4 million as at 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB71.9 million), a decrease of RMB12.5
million, mainly due to a reduction in the issuance of bank accepted
bills for payments to suppliers during the year under review.

Inventories balance was RMB1,221.4 million as at 31 December
2015, an increase of RMB162.5 million with an average inventory
turnover days of 47 days (2014: 44 days). The increase in inventory
at the end of 2015 was due to more number of stores and an earlier
Chinese New Year in 2016 than in 2015.

Trade and other receivables reduced by RMB78.0 million to
RMB737.1 million (2014: RMB815.1 million). Included in the balance
was RMB341.7 million (2014: RMB296.6 million) of trade receivables
and other debtors. All the trade receivables and other debtors,
apart from rental deposits of RMB97.0 million, are expected to be
recovered within one year and thus no provision was made. Also
included in the balance was RMB319.6 million (2014: RMB518.5
million) of receivables from related companies, a reduction of
RMB198.9 million. The reduction was primarily payment made by
WSL for the consideration in respect of the acquisition of seven
stores from the Group. The forward exchange contract with a net
fair value of RMB75.8 million (2014: nil) has been recognised as
derivative financial instruments and included in the trade and other
receivables during the year under review.

Other assets of RMB234.9 million mainly comprised of intangible
assets of RMB166.5 million, deferred tax assets of RMB31.3 million
and prepaid lease payments for premises of RMB33.7 million.
Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired in
the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and in 2012. Intangible assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over the remaining
lease terms which vary from 10 to 30 years.
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CEENERE SR

Bank and other loans amounted to RMB1,085.5 million as at 31
December 2015, a reduction of RMB58.7 million, mainly due to the
repayment of certain bank loans and exchange effect during the
year under review.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
ETAII A

As at 31 December 2015
R=-FB-—FHF+ZHA=+—H

BITRHEMEFN=E—AF+=-A=+—H
A AR #1,085,500,000T c TEREEFE
ANEEEE TRITERARIEZEHRDARE
58,700,0007T °

Loans from

Bank loans third parties Total
E=FHiRfM
RITER ZEX wE
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARBEER ARBEETR
Within one year —FR 267.1 43.5 310.6
Over one year BiE—F 774.9 - 774.9
Total Mz 1,042.0 43.5 1,085.5

RMB1,042.0 million was the outstanding amount as at 31 December
2015 of a USD200.0 million syndicated loan led by The Siam
Commercial Bank Public Company Limited with a term of seven
years, expiring in December 2018.

Trade payables and other liabilities as at 31 December 2015 was
RMB3,992.1 million (2014: RMB3,790.8 million) of which RMB139.6
million (2014: RMB108.2 million) was due to related parties.

Reserves balance was RMB1,642.7 million as at 31 December 2015
(2014: 1,612.3 million). It comprises share premium of RMB1,933.2
million, other reserves of RMB231.7 million and accumulated losses
of RMB522.2 million.

Capital structure

The Group finances its own working capital requirement through a
combination of funds generated from operations and bank and other
borrowings.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year under review, the Group’s sources of funds were
generated primarily from operating activities and banking facilities.
The increase in net cash and cash equivalents was mainly due to
the cash generated from operation, cash proceeds from disposal
of seven stores and net proceeds from exercise of share options
exceeding the CAPEX payments and repayment of bank loans and
interest. We expect we will continue to have sufficient cash to meet
our business needs.
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For the year
ended 31 December

#2+t=-A=+—H

IEFE
2015 2014
—E-REF —E-NEF
Cash and cash equivalents (RMB million) R&RBELZH(ARBHEER) 165.8 140.1
Bank and other loans (RMB million) RITREMER(ARBEET) 1,085.5 1,144.2
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BE&ERN/ (Rd) 8
after effect of foreign exchange (REEIBEREE 2 FE)
rate changes (RMB million) (AR¥BEER) 25.7 (126.1)
Current ratio (x) TENLE = (1) 0.53 0.57
Quick ratio (x) HEENLE =& (£3) 0.24 0.28
Gearing ratio (x) BEAREEEL R (F)
(defined as bank and other loans (URITREMER
divided by total equity) PRUAEERTTE) 0.53 0.57

During the year under review, bank loans bear interest at three-
month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.5% per
annum and other loans bear interest at three-month LIBOR plus
1.5% per annum.

Foreign currency exposure

The Directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations are all
based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to significant currency
risks in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from bank loans and
other loans which are denominated in USD. The Company entered
into a USD non-deliverable forward contract with a notional amount
of USD170.2 million on 20 July 2015 which expires on 22 July
2016. A gain of RMB72.8 million was recorded for the year ended
31 December 2015 from the forward contract as a result of the
depreciation of the RMB. The Group does not enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had issued one guarantee
to an independent third party which expires in 2025 and one
guarantee to a bank which expires in April 2016 in respect of finance
lease arrangement entered into by a subsidiary. The Directors
do not consider it probable that claims will be made against the
Company under either of the guarantees. The maximum liability of
the Company as at 31 December 2015 under the guarantees issued
was 100% of the future minimum lease payments under the lease
arrangements entered into by the subsidiary of RMB60.0 million.
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Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding the following
charges, which had all been created in favour of Bangkok Bank
Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch, as security agent for
the USD200.0 million syndicated loan referred to above:

(i) share charge by the Company over all shares of its subsidiary,
Prime Global Retail Management & Advisory Limited;

(i) equitable share mortgage by the Company over all shares of its
subsidiaries, Chia Tai Trading (Beijing) Company Limited, Chia
Tai Trading (Qingdao) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Xian)
Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Zhengzhou) Company
Limited, Chia Tai Distribution Investment Company Limited,
Yangtze Supermarket Investment Co. Limited and Union
Growth Investments Limited (“Union Growth”);

(iiiy equitable share mortgage by Union Growth over all shares of
its subsidiary, Lotus-CPF (PRC) Investment Company Limited
(“Lotus-CPF”), and 10,821,033 shares of Chia Tai-Lotus
(Guangdong) Investment Co. Ltd. (“CT-Lotus”); and

(iv) equitable share mortgage by Lotus-CPF over 97,389,312
shares of its subsidiary, CT-Lotus.

The abovementioned share charge and equitable share mortgages
were created to secure the Group’s syndicated term loan facility
of USD200.0 million which will finally mature on 31 December
2018, with instalment payments scheduled during its term. As at
31 December 2015, the total principal outstanding was USD160.3
million.

Employees, training and remuneration policy

The Group employed approximately 14,330 employees as at 31
December 2015, of which approximately 1,560 were head office
staff and approximately 12,770 were store employees. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance and
experience and prevailing market rate. Other employee benefits
include insurance and medical cover, and subsidised training
programs.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Store network

During the year under review, the Group opened five new stores,
all of which are situated in the Guangdong Province. The five new
stores have a total sales floor area of approximately 35,230 square
meters. Four of them are located in second and third tier cities
such as Zhanjiang, Zhongshan and Shantou and one is located
in Guangzhou. In addition, the Group opened a mall with 45,000
square meters, Lotus Center, in Shantou in which one of the new
stores is located. The Group now owns and operates a total of 60
retail stores with a total sales floor area of over 129,800 square
meters and a shopping mall which is a new business format for the
Group.

Optimisation of merchandise and enhanced relationship with
suppliers

During the year under review, the Group continued to review and
enhance its merchandise mix and offerings. The merchandise team
had compiled a core assortment list and developed the buying and
selling strategies and targets for 17 core product categories. We
continued to expand our direct sourcing capabilities and identified
more product supply origins. More direct purchases for fresh food
were made providing our customers with better range and lower
prices. In addition, the Group continued to invest in quality control
to ensure freshness and food safety.

The Group continued to review its inventory level regularly, in
particular the slow-moving items, and continued to strengthen
inventory management, such as forecast and stock clearance plan
after tab promotions end.

As disposable income continues to rise and customers look for
more premium products, we have expanded our import team
capability to bring in a wider range of imports products. Currently,
we import mainly snacks, beverages and health supplements, to
which we will add kitchenware and other groceries. Our objective
is for import sales to account for over 10% of total sales. Our
second bakery central kitchen was opened in one of the stores
in Guangzhou which supplies bakery products to 20 stores in the
area. The bakery central kitchen enabled us to broaden the product
categories as well as better control the quality and consistency of
our products on offer.

The abolishment of the one-child policy and allowing all couples
to have two children is expected to further boost the consumption
of maternal and baby products. We continued to refresh the
designated areas for the “Mother and Baby Centre” in each store
and we will continue to bring in a wider variety of leading products
to increase our competitiveness.
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The Group further enhanced the data-based approach for supplier
selection and procurement. The Group selected suppliers in an
open, fair and transparent manner and formed strategic alliance with
the suppliers to carry out monitoring and assessment, so as to keep
abreast with market trends and improve sales by bringing in new
products. Meanwhile, the Group strictly performed its obligations
under contracts and offered promotional display of products
accordingly, gaining wide recognition among the suppliers. In a
survey “Advantage Report Mirror” carried out by The Advantage
Group International Inc., which interviewed over 100 major suppliers
in China on their perceptions of 23 major retail operators in areas
such as category/business development, logistics and retail
execution, Lotus ranked 6th, one place up from 2014. We continued
to work closely with our suppliers. The annual vendor conference
held in June 2015 was attended by representatives of over 600
vendors. Our vendor service team continued to provide high quality
service to our vendors with its own designated office and meeting
space to receive vendors and answer enquiries.

Improvement of operation and system efficiency

The Group continued to make use of systems and tools to improve
operating efficiency. During the year under review, we continued
to enhance the features/functions of our vendor platform system
including early availability of performance reports and more flexible
inquiry options. In addition, we introduced the new Certificate
Authority function which allows platform service agreement to be
executed online to reduce the use of paper, save space and make
documentation and information sharing easier. We also completed
the development of the “invoice-tracking” system with a delivery
company. Both our suppliers and our operating subsidiaries would
be able to track the status of the invoices online. This new system
will go live in the first quarter of 2016.

All our shopping carts are now coin-operated, meaning that
customers have to return the shopping cart to the designated area
after use in order to get the coin back. We have started the use of
electronic price-tag in our Fresh department which allows instant
price changes to reflect the level of freshness of the products.
This helps reduce shrinkage and ensure no price discrepancy at
check-out. In addition, we also added information such as origin,
specialties and recipe recommendation etc on the pricing board for
our customers to better understand what they are buying and how
they can be cooked.

During the year under review, we set up a nationwide invoice
processing centre in Shantou. All invoices are now sent and
processed by this centre for better invoice management and to
reduce processing time.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group upgraded the current
e-contract system enabling the data on the e-contract to be
shared with the Virtual Memory System. This helped remove
the need for duplicate entry and eliminate human error in data-
input and improve efficiency. In addition, the Group developed
a report analysis system which is integrated with the Customer
Relationship Management System; this enabled merchandising
report, distribution centre (“DC”) report, lease area report etc to
be downloaded and viewed on personal computer and on mobile
equipment and these reports are updated every 10 to 15 minutes.

We continued our commitment to total quality management (“TQM”)
to achieve operational excellence. Currently 48 of our retail stores
and all DCs are ISO9001 certified. We will continue to work on
improving and implementing our TQM.

Optimisation of supply chain management

DCs are an integral part of our retail business and the Group
continued to strengthen its network and improved functionality and
efficiency. During the year under review, the Group continued to
strengthen its supply chain process and procedures and continued
to make use of tools and equipment to improve efficiency and
lower human errors. Ear audio equipment was introduced to all
floor staff in our DCs and they would follow the instructions issued
by the computerised voice system rather than rely on a hand-held
communication device.

We changed the compensation structure of our staff in our DCs.
They are now paid based on the number of pieces handled rather
than paid by hour. The change has resulted in a more efficient
workforce while the Group was able to save on overtime expenses.

Strengthening of customer satisfaction and enhancement of
brand awareness

The Group continued our very successful “50% off Thanks Giving”
activities throughout the year. The activity was held in March, May,
July, August and November with over 40 carefully selected products
were sold at 50% off each time. The activity was not only well-
received by our customers but we received very positive support
from our vendors too as this created a platform/opportunity for
vendors not only to be able to sell more but also a platform for them
to introduce new products.

To encourage and reward our members to visit more frequently
and spend more, we launched “Members’ spend week-by-week”:
customers who visit our stores in consecutive weeks and spend
over a certain amount of money each week will be rewarded with
cash rebate based on the amount they spent.
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Our performance depends on our ability to attract and retain
customers and to service their demands. We continued to make
sure our customer service centre in each store and also our call
centre were operating effectively and there was sufficient capacity
to handle volumes. In addition, we also conducted focus group
survey to assess customer opinions and satisfaction levels to
ensure that our staff remains focused on delivering excellent
customer service.

Continued store innovation

The Group continued its efforts to transform our stores into lifestyle
model designed to provide one-stop shopping convenience and
a more comfortable shopping environment. During the year under
review, we completed the major renovation work of four stores.

The Group continued to improve the tenant mix in our lease areas
adjacent to our stores to offer our customers diversified and well-
known brands. We continued to renovate vacant or low-productivity
areas into revenue generating leasable areas in order to increase
our lease income and bring in more customers. We cooperated with
Rucker Park China, the largest sports stadium chain in Shanghai,
and converted the roof of one of our Shanghai stores into a Rucker
Park.

People development

Training and development is one of the strategic priorities in
attracting, developing and retaining a knowledgeable and skilled
workforce. We continued to work closely with C.P. Corporate
University with an objective to develop a pool of high quality
talents to support the continued development and expansion of our
business; additional faculties were established such as Operation
Faculty, Merchandise Faculty and Leadership Development Faculty
during the year under review. We have put together a training team
of over 100 trainers which offers over 200 courses to 337 chosen
core talents. In addition, we continued to broaden cooperation with
well-known academic organisation; our “Spring Pink” project has
been selected by Harvard Business School as one of its Global
FIELD projects in China.

Employees are the most valuable asset and resource of the Group
and we are committed to improving the work environment and
conditions for employees. During the year under review, the Group
enhanced sanitary inspection across its headquarters building,
stores and office premises; and we also installed direct-drinking
water and disinfectant spray in the head office so as to ensure
an improved work environment for its employees. In addition,
the Group and the workers’ union continued to send a variety of
holiday gifts to employees during festivals such as Chinese New
Year, Dragon Boat Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival. To enhance
employees’ physical and mental health, we organised “Sunlight
Running” with one of our suppliers in June; Shanghai Pudong
Medical Women’s Association offered free examination to our
female employees in August and our medical consultant arranged
free “Moxa-wool Moxibustion Lecture” and “Cream Formula Clinic”
in October.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Human Resources department also underwent certain changes
in 2015 as we continued to find ways to improve our work efficiency
through the use of technology. The employee leave application
and approval procedure is now being processed online and the
successful launch of “Auto Recruiting and Approval Process”
system had significantly shortened the recruiting and approval time
and facilitates a paperless office.

In 2016, we will be working around the 7 Chinese characters
principle of “Health, Innovation and Growth” to complete the
optimisation of the organisation structure of each function. We will
continue to make use of new technology to improve efficiency,
reduce costs and further promote a paperless office. We will also
continue to reinforce and improve the performance management
process and performance bonus scheme to incentivise our
workforce. In addition, the “Jiren Foundation” which was set up in
2015 to reward outstanding performance will be giving out its first
award.

Social responsibility

Observing the business mission “For the Country, For the People
and For the Company”, the Group continued to be actively involved
in the community, focusing on helping and developing people
and at the same time placing great importance in protecting
the environment. Our efforts in protecting the environment
are discussed in the section “Safety, Occupational Health and
Environmental Policy”.

In March 2015, the Group launched its annual “Spring Pink”
activities to promote love and care to help women in need.
Journalists from 10 media outlets attended and over 100 articles
about the event were printed.

We continued to focus on activities related to young people and
children. We continued to work with primary schools in Shanghai
on the “Lotus Heart: Smart Kid, Good Kid” program which was
designed to nurture their sense of responsibilities towards the
society and the family while enhancing their self-esteem and
encourage them to be more adventurous. We celebrated Children
Day with local communities and organised drawing activities and
kids fashion shows in our stores. We also cooperated with the
Shanghai Elderly Association to organise calligraphy activities for
the elderly to celebrate Chinese New Year.

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group strives to comply in all material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations which are regarded as having a
significant impact on the Group, and has not come across incidence
of material breach or non-compliance during the year under review.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Safety, Occupational Health and Environmental (“SHE”) Policy

As a responsible employer and store operator, the Group pays great
attention to the health and safety of our employees, our customers
and our business partners. In addition, we also recognise we have
a responsibility and an obligation to work to reduce the direct
impact of our business operations on the natural environment. Our
performance in SHE is an integral part of our business activities and
a foundation for sustainable development. Our SHE commitment
includes:

e  Promote SHE culture in the organisation and implement SHE
policy and procedures to create a sustainable future;

e Improve the environmental quality and ensure that the safety
and health of our employees is the top priority;

e  Comply with all rules and regulations relating to our business
operation;

e  Prevention of pollution, disease, injury and accidents;

e  Continuous training to employees to increase awareness and
knowledge and encourage participation in SHE activities;

e  Explore opportunities through research and new technology to
promote energy saving, resource recovery, recycling and re-use
of resources; and

e  Establish effective communication channel to convey the SHE
policy to employees, customers, business partners and the
public.

We undertook the following energy saving and health and safety
measures during the year under review:

We carried out the annual analysis on the store environments
and identified the risk factors for management and control and
issued the “Environmental factors identification table”. Measures
taken include the installation of sound insulation facilities around
Rucker Park and the use of environmental protective detergent in
our laundry rooms. To support the promotion of energy saving, we
participated in the Earth Hour 2015 organised by the World Wide
Fund for Nature (WWF) by switching off non-essential lights at
all our stores and regional head offices for an hour on 29 March
2015. All employees are called on to develop a habit of energy
saving such as turning off the lights during lunch and switch off idle
computers and equipment and print on both sides to save paper.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The SHE department identified a total of 48 policies relating to
SHE matters promulgated by relevant government departments
and ensured that the Group is in full compliance. The Group has
not been found in material breach or non-compliance of any of
these policies. We prepared and released a total of 18 documents
and forms on SHE related matters such as “SHE objective, target
KPIs and management proposal”, “Categorisation of wastes”,
and “Manual for emission of greenhouse gas and noise pollution”
in order to help ensure all our employees follow the standard
procedures and ensure they are aware of what is expected from
them. We have engaged a qualified oil recycling vendor to collect
and handle the waste/used oil generated by the Fresh department.
In addition, we clean the fresh lampblack pipelines regularly and
a third party vendor carry out testing to ensure the work is done
properly and meet the relevant standards.

We have started putting in place in all our stores waste recycling
and sorting bin to sort waste by category and recycle the waste
as much as possible and to ensure that, hazardous waste will be
isolated and processed separately.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Group

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations
or growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The Directors believe that
the factors set out below are considered to be the principal
risks faced by the Group. They do not comprise all of the risks
associated with our business and are not set out in priority order,
and we acknowledge that additional risks not presently known to
management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also
have an adverse effect on the business.

Business risks

Unclear strategy or strategy not being implemented - Our
business may suffer if we do not have a clearly defined strategy
or if our strategy follows the wrong direction, or is not effectively
communicated or implemented. The Group operates in a highly
competitive industry and the retail industry itself is undergoing
a transformational change in this digital age. An unclear
or unsuccessful strategy to compete against the growth of
e-commerce as well as against any other competitors and failure
to compete on critical areas including price, product range, quality
and multichannel service may adversely affect our market share and
profitability.
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CEENERE SR

Product safety — Concerns regarding the safety of products offered
at our stores or the safety and quality of our supply chain could
cause customers to avoid purchasing certain products from us even
if the basis for the concern is beyond our control or whether or not
based on fact. These concerns could discourage consumers from
buying from us and may have an adverse effect on our turnover and
our reputation. Our business may also suffer if we fail to work with
our suppliers to ensure our products are designed and delivered to
meet a high standard and to ensure we can trace provenance.

New store locations — The Group is primarily engaged in the
operation of hypermarkets. The supply of locations for new
hypermarkets is scarce and as a result, competition to secure these
locations is intense. Our growth prospect will be adversely affected
if we fail to secure suitable locations on terms acceptable to us.

Rising rental cost — As all but one of the Group’s stores are located
at leased premises, the Group may face significant rent hikes
when the current leases expire. Failure to negotiate lease renewal
on terms acceptable to the Group will have adverse effect on the
operation and the financial performance of the Group.

Reliance on key systems — The Group relies heavily on the use of
information technology in our day to day operation. Any significant
failure in the IT processes of the retail operations in our stores or
in our supply chain could impact our ability to trade. The damage
or interruption of any of the systems can be due to events that are
beyond the control of the Group; and despite having proper control
procedures in place, the Group cannot fully guarantee that our
systems are foolproof.

Economic and legislative risks

The Group may be affected by any adverse development in the
economic and regulatory environment in the PRC. Uncertainties in
the economic environment include inflation and deflation, the effects
of the outbreak of any severe infectious disease, changes in interest
rates and taxation, statutory minimum wage and currency exchange
control. Any deterioration in the economic climate may lead to
the overall decline in our sales that would restrict the growth and
profitability of the Group. Whilst the Group strives to continue to
take effective measures to protect ourselves against such risks with
prudent financial management and efficient operating procedures,
there is no assurance that adverse development in the economic
and regulatory environment will not adversely affect the Group.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group’s retail operations are all based in the PRC and all
of our revenue and a substantial portion of our expenditure are
denominated in Renminbi, the Group is therefore not exposed to
significant currency risk in its operations. The Group is exposed
to foreign currency risk from bank loans and other loans which are
denominated in USD. As RMB is not a freely convertible currency,
exchange rate volatility may therefore have an adverse effect on our
statement of financial position and/or statement of profit or loss.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As the interest rates for the Group’s bank and other loans are based
on LIBOR, our statement of profit or loss may be adversely affected
by rising interest rates.

The Group operates a centralised treasury function which is
responsible for managing its liquidity, interest and foreign currency
risks. The Group’s treasury function operates under a Board-
approved policy. This includes approved counter-parties and other
limits which are designed to mitigate the Group’s exposure to
financial risks. However, there can be no guarantee that the Group
would be able to compensate or hedge against such adverse
effects.

Funding and liquidity risks

The Group finances its operations by a combination of funds
generated from operating activities, banking facilities and other
borrowing. A weak performance could put pressure on our free cash
flow and credit metrics and affect our ability to borrow or increase
our cost of our borrowing. In addition, an underperformance against
plans may result in impairment of asset values.

People

The Group’s continuing development is dependent on the ability
to attract, retain, develop and motivate the best people with the
right capabilities at all levels. Any failure to do so could limit our
ability to succeed. While the Group offers competitive compensation
packages as well as subsidised training program, professional
courses and seminars as well as regular on the job training, the
retention of key employees cannot be guaranteed.

LOOKING FORWARD

We expect 2016 is going to be another challenging year with the
growth of the Chinese economy expected to continue to ease.
However, we see this as an opportunity as the growth becomes
more driven by domestic consumption rather than export-or
investment-driven. As disposal income continues to rise, thanks
to the solid wage growth and the deflationary environment,
contribution from domestic consumption to GDP will continue
to eclipse contribution from investment. We continue to believe
our business model is sustainable. In 2016, we plan to further
expand our retail network by opening six to eight new stores and
another Lotus Center in Xian. Whilst we expect competition from
e-commerce to intensify, it is also our strong belief that shopping
is for many people a pleasurable social experience that cannot
be duplicated online. It is therefore important for us to be able to
deliver a personal, seamless and differentiated shopping experience
to attract and retain customers. Mobile commerce and online and
offline integration will be some of the key aspects of the Group’s
development to enhance the shopping experience.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEREBRES

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are the cornerstones for a
successful business, not an exercise in compliance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the relevant code provisions
prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), except that the Chairman did not attend the annual
general meeting held on 16 June 2015 due to another important
business engagement, which deviated from code provision E.1.2.

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and supervises the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group’s businesses to certain executive
directors and senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of fifteen
members, ten of whom are executive directors (including a
Chairman, an Executive Chairman and four Vice Chairmen) and five
are independent non-executive directors. Detailed biographies of
the directors can be found on pages 30 to 34 of this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company are separated
and the positions are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintaining an effective segregation of duties between management
of the Board and day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and the CEO.

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company and
providing leadership to the Board so that the Board works efficiently
and discharges its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
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Mr. Li Wen Hai was CEO of the Company during the year until 1
December, when he ceased to be CEO & Senior Vice Chairman
of the Company and was re-designated as Executive Chairman
of the Company and Mr. Weng Hai Xin was appointed as CEO of
the Company. The CEO is responsible for managing the Group’s
business and operations.

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held four regular meetings in 2015, including to perform
the corporate governance functions of reviewing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), written employee
guidelines, and the compliance with the Code Provisions.

Details of the attendance of each individual director at Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings during 2015
are set out below:
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No. of meetings attended/held

bR/ BreEv A
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit
Directors EZ Shareholder Board Committee Committee Committee
RRAE Ezg R#zEg iHWzag EHZEE
Executive Directors YiTES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEARE 0/1 2/4 11 2/2 -
Mr. Li Wen Hai FHERE 17 44 - - -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HEMEE 17 4/ - - -
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed REELE 1/1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Michael Ross EZERE 0 34 - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping B RE 0A 0/4 - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HnfiE 1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont HArks 0/1 0/4 - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong & 1N 474 - 2/2 2
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul % 4 0n 3/4 - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors  BUFH{TES
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit% & 11 4/4 11 2/2 2/2
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & il 4/4 - 212 212
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong % 4 il 4/4 - - -
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech % 4 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHNEE 17 4/4 17 2/2 2/2
No. of meetings EELE 1 4 1 2 2

*

attended on voluntary basis

Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and
Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers. They are the cousins of Mr.
Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-law of Messrs.
Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai
Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Save as
disclosed above, there are no family relationships among members
of the Board and between the Chairman and the CEO.
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Continuous Professional Development

The individual training record of each director of the Company
was received for the year ended 31 December 2015. Messrs.
Soopakij Chearavanont, Li Wen Hai, Narong Chearavanont, Chan
Yiu-Cheong, Ed, Michael Ross, Meth Jiaravanont, Umroong
Sanphasitvong, Piyawat Titasattavorakul, Viroj Sangsnit, Songkitti
Jaggabatara, Itthaporn Subhawong, Prasobsook Boondech and
Cheng Yuk Wo participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars relevant to business or directors’ duties
and responsibilities. Messrs. Yang Xiaoping and Suphachai
Chearavanont participated in continuous professional development
by reading relevant materials.

Securities Transactions by Directors/Officers

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.
Officers/employees deemed to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive or confidential information in relation to the Company
or its shares are required to be prohibited from dealing in securities
of the Company in accordance with written guidelines.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

During the year, there was no resignation and appointment of
directors.

Any newly appointed director would be briefed by the Company’s
lawyers about their duties and obligations as a director of a listed
company in Hong Kong.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one
year, which is renewable. All the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at general meetings of
the Company, in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointments, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles, at least one-third
of the directors who have served the longest on the Board since
their last re-election are required to retire by rotation at each annual
general meeting. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election at
the same annual general meeting.
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BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. Cheng Yuk
Wo (Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara, with
the purpose of monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements and provides assurances to the Board that these
comply with accounting standards and stock exchange and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting. The Audit Committee
met twice in 2015 to review work done by internal and external
auditors and oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. The Audit Committee receives updates from
Internal Audit and has dialogues with senior management on their
control responsibilities. Written terms of reference are posted on the
Company’s website.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG is set out as follows:
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—E-HF
(RMB’000)
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25t R 3%
H b AR %5

Audit Services
Other Services

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. Cheng Yuk
Wo (Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara, and two
executive directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont and Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out by the
Board with clearly defined written terms of reference which are
posted on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s remuneration policies
and for the approval of remuneration packages for all directors
except that its members do not participate in the determination of
their own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee determines
the remuneration of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses,
incentive payment, share option, pension right and compensation
payment (including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment etc). The determination
of the Remuneration Committee are made in consultation with and
taking recommendations from the Chairman of the Board and other
advisers as appropriate and submitted for endorsement by the
Board. The Remuneration Committee met twice in 2015 to discharge
its duties. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 6
to the financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive director of
the Company, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman), and two
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely,
Messrs. Viroj Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include determining
and reviewing the nomination policy and Board diversity policy,
making recommendations as to the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least annually, the appointment and re-appointment
of the directors and identify their suitabilities and to access the
independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee met once in 2015 to discharge its duties,
including assessing the independency of independent non-executive
directors under the guidelines of the Listing Rules and review the
Board diversity policy and terms of reference. Written terms of
reference are posted on the Company’s website.

SUMMARY OF BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company, selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in the Company. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. Steady progress was made on achieving those
objectives.

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational
risks and maintaining a proper and effective system of internal
control to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group has
adopted comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels of
authority in areas of financial and operational controls, and risk
management to ensure that its assets and resources remain secure
at all times.

The role of the Audit Committee is, through dialogue with
management, and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions, to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and to report to the Board any significant risks and issues.
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The risk management function is responsible for analysing possible
risks that may affect the Group’s business operations; find
measures to eliminate, prevent and control risk. The Group has
invested in distribution centres and information technology systems
such as the store management system and the distribution centre
system. Information technology has played a major role in assisting
the Group to achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis.
Therefore, an error or problem in the information technology
systems will affect the Group’s ability to manage store operation
on a normal basis and may negatively affect the Group’s operating
performance.

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Group’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review. The
authority of the department is defined by the Audit Committee and
reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Audit
Committee.

The objective of operation audit is to provide an independent
and objective evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of
store operations including internal controls established by the
management. Each store has to go through a monthly detailed
inspection of key operating activities such as cash movement,
goods receiving, claims and payments. Storewide physical counts
are carried out at least once a year. The operation audit department
reports to the Chief Financial Officer.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements which aim to give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72 and 73 of the Articles, general meetings can
be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.
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Any extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by notice in writing of not less
than a period which is the longer of twenty-one days and ten clear
business days, and any other extraordinary general meeting shall
be called by notice in writing of not less than a period which is the
longer of fourteen days and ten clear business days. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special
business (as defined in Article 75 of the Articles), particulars of the
resolutions to be considered at the meeting, and shall be given, in
the manner mentioned in the Articles or in such other manner, if any,
as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting, to such
persons as are, under the Articles, entitled to receive such notices
from the Company. However, a meeting of the Company called by
shorter notice is deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
ninety-five per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board or any proposals
to be put forward at general meetings can be emailed to
contact@cplotuscorp.com or by mail to:

C.P. Lotus Corporation
21/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available communicate to shareholders
the performance of the Group including the annual and interim
report and press releases and announcements. Annual general
meeting and other general meetings provide a useful opportunity for
the Board to maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintaining continuing open dialogues
with institutional investors and analysts as a means of developing
their understanding of our strategy, operations, management and
plans and as a forum for them to raise any issues they may have
and to provide the Group with valuable feedbacks and insights.

The Company’s website http://www.cplotuscorp.com provides an

additional channel for shareholders and interested parties to access
the Group’s information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 52, is Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company and has been an Executive Director
since 2000. He has been a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA and has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. He is an executive director and Vice Chairman
of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a non-executive director and the
Chairman of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited and a non-
executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd., which are companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is also
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. He is also
the Chairman of True Visions Public Company Limited.

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 58, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008 and
re-designated as Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 22 October 2013. He ceased
to be Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and was
re-designated as Executive Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 December 2015. Mr. Li obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration from Huazhong Normal University, PRC and is a
senior economist. He has extensive experience in retail business.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 51, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as
Vice Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from New
York University, USA, Certificate of Advance Management Program
in Transforming Proven Leaders into Global Executives from
Harvard Business School, Harvard University, USA and an Honorary
Doctorate degree of Business Administration from Ramkamhaeng
University, Thailand. Mr. Narong Chearavanont has extensive
experience in the retail and trading industries. He is a director of
True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL Public Company
Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited, all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed, aged 53, has been an Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor degree from the University of Chicago,
USA and a Master degree from the Sloan School of Management,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Mr. Chan was a
Regional Director North Asia of the Diary Farm Group and a director
of Dairy Farm Management Services Limited from November 2001
to November 2006. He was the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Walmart China from November 2006 to October 2011.
Mr. Chan is currently a Vice Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited. He is also a non-executive director of Treasury
Wine Estates Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange and an independent non-executive director of Link Real
Estate Investment Trust, which is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Michael Ross, aged 51, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since September 2006. He was re-designated
as Executive Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1
May 2008 and ceased to hold such position with effect from 1
September 2010. Mr. Ross was re-designated as Vice Chairman of
the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He obtained a Master
degree in Science from University of Salford, United Kingdom and
a Bachelor degree in Hospitality Management from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Hong Kong. He completed an Executive
Program at the Kennedy School of Government of Harvard
University in USA in 2009. He has extensive experience in retail
business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter in 1999, he has served
in major key positions in Business Development, Operations and
Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross also served as Regional
President in Southern Region & Eastern Region of Lotus. Mr. Ross
has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC) Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee since
June 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 14 May 2007 and ceased
to hold such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr. Yang
was re-designated as Vice Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 January 2012. He has more than 20 years’ of extensive
experience in international trading and investment in the PRC and
has good contact with central, provincial and municipal governors.
Mr. Yang is a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. and CITIC Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 57, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment,
finance, banking and strategic business development in Asia and
USA. He is currently a non-executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co.
Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He is currently also the Senior Executive
Assistant to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 49, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont has extensive experience in the telecommunication
and broadcasting industries. He is an executive director of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a director, President and
Chief Executive Officer of True Corporation Public Company Limited
and a director of Siam Makro Public Company Limited, both of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont is also a director and Chief Executive Officer of True
Visions Public Company Limited and True Move Company Limited.
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Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 63, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in
December 2006. He obtained a Bachelor and a Master degree in
Accounting from Thammasat University, Thailand and has extensive
experience in financial management. Mr. Sanphasitvong is currently
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and of
CPPC Public Company Limited. He is also the Deputy Group Chief
Financial Officer of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.

Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul, aged 62, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1 September 2010. He obtained
a Bachelor Degree majoring in Marketing from Ramkhamhaeng
University, Thailand. He has extensive experience in the marketing
and retail business. Mr. Titasattavorakul is a Vice Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a director of CP ALL Public Company
Limited, and also a director of Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
both of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 80, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 1999. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was appointed
as a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2012. Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy Minister of
Transport from 1991 to 1992 and the Deputy of Minister of Defense
in 1996 in Thailand.

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara, aged 65, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the Chulachomklao
Royal Military Academy, Thailand and graduated from National
Defence College of Thailand. Mr. Jaggabatara served in the Royal
Thai Armed Forces for 39 years and was appointed as Chief of
Defence Forces of the Royal Thai Armed Forces in 2008. He retired
from the Royal Thai Armed Forces on 30 September 2011. Mr.
Jaggabatara is currently an Advisor to Kasetphand Industry Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong, aged 64, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He graduated from National Defence College of Thailand. Mr.
Subhawong served in the Royal Thai Air Force (“RTAF”) for 37
years and was appointed as Air Chief Marshal of the RTAF in 2007.
He was appointed the 21st Commander-in-Chief of the RTAF on 1
October 2008. Mr. Subhawong retired as Commander-in-Chief of
the RTAF on 30 September 2012.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech, aged 70, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Mr. Boondech was admitted as Barrister-at-Law, Institute
of Legal Education, Thai Bar Association, Thailand in 1967 and
Barrister-at-Law, Lincoln’s Inn, England in 1972. He has extensive
experience in the legal field and is a lecturer on Family Law, Faculty
of Law, Chulalongkorn University and Institute of Legal Education,
Thai Bar Association, Thailand. Mr. Boondech was the President of
the Senate of Thailand from 2008 to 2011.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 2004. He was a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and became its
Chairman on 1 April 2012, when he also became a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a
Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and
Finance from London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of expertise
in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, Top Spring International
Holdings Limited and Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, all of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale hypermarket stores located in the northern, southern and
eastern parts of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” from
pages 14 to 22.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 50 of
the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year (2014: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

On 21 May 2015, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of HK$0.1080 per share as a
result of the exercise of all the outstanding share options granted
on 24 May 2005. Net proceeds from the share issue amounted to
HK$65,966,000 (equivalent to RMB52,021,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$2,276,932,000 (equivalent to RMB1,907,617,000) (2014:
HK$2,681,660,000 (equivalent to RMB2,115,541,000)) as computed
in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year.
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Report of the Directors

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB4,000 (2014: RMB7,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Narong Chearavanont
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs. Michael Ross, Yang Xiaoping, Meth
Jiaravanont, Suphachai Chearavanont and Piyawat Titasattavorakul
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
Details of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the relevant circular to be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a term of one year, which is renewable and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance, in which
a director of the Company or an entity connected with a director
of the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2015, the directors were not aware that any of
the directors had interests in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company

EEWREE

e

EENBETTHRAEREKR®S - 8
EROREEETER 2ERR
R e (&)

() REAXRFRZBRE

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of directors EEEH shares held shareholding
EFRE

BREROHE BHEHL

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEARE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HAREE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BMEEE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HRBEE 61,080,066 0.55%
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont B EE 122,160,132 1.11%
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4% 61,080,066 0.55%

(ii) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) REBZIEFREZRG

Approximate

Name of associated Number of percentage of

Name of directors corporations shares held shareholding

ERE

ExEE M EB A BEROHE BREHT

Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
TEEBEE

Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
BNERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
Part XV of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EEWRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, in shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

AKRRREMA L RERHS R EE
BROFPEFEEZEERKXR

R-ZZB-RAE+=-A=1+—A0 ' KBREEAXA
AEESRESTHRABUIN 2 HMA L RESE
EIRBIEBCIEETHEEZETMATEER
AT ZROREERODPEEZEZR AR
mT

Long positions in shares of the Company RAEDATFEZRE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders RERER Notes shares held shareholding
BEREBH
Mt HFERGEE Bk
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
Company Limited (“CPH”) Company Limited ([CPH)
Worth Access Trading Limited Worth Access Trading Limited (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
(“Worth Access”) ([Worth Access )
CPG Overseas Company Limited CPG Overseas Company Limited (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
(“CPG Overseas”) (TCPG Overseas |)
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Charoen Pokphand Group Company (1) 18,450,001,399 167.44%
Limited (“CPG”") Limited ([CPGJ)
Note: KfsE :

(1) Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth
Access’ shareholding in CPH. CPG Overseas had declared an interest
in the same 18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding
in Worth Access. CPG had declared an interest in the same
18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas
and an interest in 366,480,396 shares by virtue of its shareholding in a
subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had any interest or short positions
in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and note 30 to the financial statements, no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
were entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) was in force for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2015.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
of the Group are set out in “Employees, training and remuneration
policy” on page 13 of this annual report.

The emolument payable to any director of the Company was
determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities within
the Group and his anticipated time and effort to be spent on the
Company’s matters.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted by shareholders of the Company
on 31 May 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) expired on 30 May 2012. The
shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the Old
Scheme and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) in place of the Old Scheme at the annual general meeting
of the Company on 22 June 2012. Upon the termination of the Old
Scheme, no further share options would be granted under the Old
Scheme. However, the rules of the Old Scheme would remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any share option granted prior to its termination which
were outstanding for the time being, or otherwise to the extent as
may be required in accordance with the rules of the Old Scheme.
All outstanding share options granted under the Old Scheme prior
to its termination would continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the Old Scheme.

Pursuant to the Old Scheme, the Company had on 6 June 2002,
10 November 2003 and 24 May 2005 granted to certain grantees
options carrying the rights to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company at exercise prices of HK$0.07, HK$0.19 and
HK$0.11 per share respectively. Under the rules of the Old Scheme,
adjustments to the exercise price and number of outstanding
share options were made from the date of completion of the open
offer on 23 December 2011. The exercise prices were adjusted to
HK$0.0687, HK$0.1865 and HK$0.1080 per share respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

There were outstanding as at 1 January 2015 options granted under
the Old Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 610,800,660
ordinary shares in the Company at HK$0.1080 per share. All of them
were exercised on 21 May 2015. The weighted average closing price
of the ordinary shares of the Company immediately before the date
of exercise was HK$0.1819.

No share options have been granted under the New Scheme
since its adoption. As at the date of this annual report, options
to subscribe for 918,544,241 ordinary shares of the Company
were available for issue under the New Scheme, representing
approximately 8.34% of 11,019,072,390 ordinary shares of the
Company in issue.

Details of the movements in share options under the Old Scheme
during the year are as follows:

BrEsTE (&)

RZE—HF—F—HB REEFEREER
TEZERELER0.1080/8 T OB QT
4 1610,800,660 EBR - TIEEREC R
CE-RAFERAZ+—BERBEITE - AAT
EBREBREBRETER B AT MNET
BT EH0.18198B T °

IRt EE > MERENE 2 BRE -
RAFERE  REFFTET IR HEREUR
BN F)918,544 241 EBR » G AR TR
BFE %1711,019,072,3908 L @ IR 498.34% °

RER  BRIBEFECEREZHFERSIN
T

Number of share options
BREHA
Adjusted Asat1 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Asat 31
Category of participant Date of grant Exercisable period  exercise price  January 2015 during the year during the year during the year ~during the year December 2015
R-E-1f H%-1f
SEAEH b=k fikBR BEAZARE -B-B  EEMRE  EERAR  FEREE  EEARY tZAZ1-H
HKS
A
(i Directors 22
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
#EARE ZEERFRACTMA “EZIFIACTMAZ
ZE-RERACTEH
Mr. Narong Chearavanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
Bl b “ERIERACTRA “FZRFIACTMAZ
ZE-RERACTEH
Mr. Yang Xiaoping 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - 61,080,086 - - -
BITEE “ETRERACTRA ZZZRFRACTMAZ
ZE-RERACT=R
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - 61,080,086 - - -
ARkt ZEEIFRACTMA ZEERERACTMAE
ZE-RERACTEH
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
ABCEE CERIERACTMA ZEEIEIACTORE
ZE-RERACTEH
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
Umroong Sanphasitongfis  ~EEEERA-TMA CEEREIACTMAZ
ZE-RERACT=R
(i) Participants other than 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 23 May 2015 0.1080 244,320,264 - 244320264 - - -
directors/employees/ “ETRERACTMA “ETRERACTMAZ
suppliers in aggregate “Z-RFEACTEA
K€z /B8 /REELN
LBENER
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Report of the Directors

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Schemes” above,
neither the Company nor any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the total convertible preference shares of
the Company in issue included 1,518,807,075 Series A convertible
preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference
shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C convertible preference shares and
2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares.

1,518,807,075 Series A convertible preference shares were issued
on 31 October 2008 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated
17 May 2007 as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Details are set out in the circular dated 29 June 2007.

3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference shares were issued
on 30 June 2010 pursuant to the Agreement dated 16 March
2010 to redeem convertible bonds issued by the Company at the
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,519,873,031. Details are set
out in the circular dated 1 April 2010.

3,673,765,764 Series C convertible preference shares were
issued on 23 December 2011 pursuant to the Underwriting
Agreement dated 14 October 2011 and the open offer as set out
in the prospectus dated 2 December 2011. Net proceeds from
the issue of Series C convertible preference shares amounted to
HK$805,056,000. Up to 31 December 2015, a total of 2,256,000
Series C convertible preference shares were converted to ordinary
shares.

2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares were
issued on 1 January 2012 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement
dated 14 October 2011 as the consideration for the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Details are set out in the circular dated 1 November
2011.

The holders of these preference shares have the right to convert
any preference shares into the Company’s ordinary shares at any
time at the conversion ratio of 1 to 1 each subject to the minimum
public float requirement under the Listing Rules. Adjustments to
the conversion price are only made upon dilutive and other events
which are related to the Company issuing new shares or convertible
debts.

Save as disclosed above, the section “Share Option Schemes” and
note 25 to the financial statements, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
LISTING RULES

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a group of banks in Thailand
pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of which, the
Company was granted a term loan facility of US$28 million, the
principal outstanding amount of which is required to be repaid by
12 instalments commencing in June 2013 up to and until December
2018.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
thereunder if the controlling shareholder of the Company, CPH fails
to legally and beneficially own (directly or indirectly) at least 51% of
the total issued and paid up ordinary shares in the Company. As at
the date of this report, CPH is interested in approximately 61.61%
of the total ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the capital of the
Company in issue.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement
to become immediately due and payable.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman, a non-executive
director and the chairman of the nomination committee of Chia Tai
Enterprises International Limited, a company which became listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3 July 2015.

Mr. Li Wen Hai, continued to be Executive Director but ceased
to be Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
was re-designated as Executive Chairman of the Company on 1
December 2015.

Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Link Real Estate Investment Trust, which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from
15 February 2016.

Mr. Yang Xiaoping has been appointed as a non-executive director
of CITIC Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 3 August 2015.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of audit committee and remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited, a company which became listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 3 July 2015.

Mr. Cheng has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as UDL Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 2 November
2015.

Mr. Cheng resigned as independent non-executive director of Imagi

International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 28 January 2016.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase and Supply Agreements

On 25 November 2013, the Company entered into the 2014
Purchase Agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”)
to purchase certain merchandise from HOEL or any of the HOEL
Related Entities (as defined in that agreement) for the term from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

On 25 November 2013, the Company entered into the 2014 Supply
Agreement with Whole Sino Limited (“WSL”) under which any
subsidiaries of the Company would supply certain merchandise
to WSL or any of the WSL Related Entities (as defined in that
agreement) for the term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

Leases and Sub-lease

On 26 May 2008, Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Kunshan
Tailian”) and Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. (EILEBEME
BRR2AT]) (“Kunshan Xinmin”) entered into a lease (the “Kunshan
Lease”) in relation to a property located at West side of North
Changjiang Road, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan, the PRC, with an area of
approximately 29,466 square meters for the term from 26 May 2008
to 24 November 2024. On 15 December 2014, Shanghai Kinghill Ltd.
(5% H=EREABMRAT) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) acquired 100% equity
interest in Kunshan Xinmin.

On 31 October 2008, Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Hefei
Ailian”) and Tongshan Development & Management (Hefei) Co., Ltd.
(HRILEX£MBEE (FIE) BR2A7]) (“Tongshan Enterprise”) entered
into a lease (the “Hefei Lease”) in relation to a property located at
Southeast Corner, Junction of He’an Road and Furong Road, Hefei
Economic & Technological Development Area, Hefei, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 23,100 square meters for the term from
1 November 2008 to 17 March 2025. The Hefei Lease Assignment
Agreement, which took effect from 1 April 2014 was entered into
among Hefei Ailian, Tongshan Enterprise and Anhui Zhengtong
Enterprises Co., Ltd. (REIEMEFEBRATE) (“Anhui Zhengtong”)
to assign the Hefei Lease from Tongshan Enterprise to Anhui
Zhengtong.

Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Shantou Lotus”)
and Ping An Trust Co., Ltd. (FR{EFEEREME A F) entered into a
lease (the “Shantou Lease”) in relation to a property located at Feng
Ze Zhuang, Changping Road, Longhu District, Shantou, the PRC,
with an area of approximately 20,400 square meters for the term
from 12 December 2005 to 11 December 2025. The Shantou Lease
was subsequently revised and assumed by JWETEFIREBHE
FRAA] (“Xinping Investment”) as lessor on 1 December 2013. On
5 March 2015, Shanghai Kinghill acquired 100% equity interest in
Xinping Investment.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-lease (Continued)

On 25 November 2013, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) and Shanghai Kinghill entered into a lease (the
“2014 Super Brand Mall Lease”) in relation to a portion of the Super
Brand Mall situated at No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road, Pudong New
District, Shanghai, the PRC, with a total floor area of approximately
13,500 square meters for the monthly rental of RMB1,500,000,
equivalent to an annual rental of RMB18,000,000 for the term from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

On 15 December 2014, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (EAEXE#EEEABRAF) (“CTCREM”)
entered into a sub-lease (the “2015 SLS Sub-Lease”), for the
term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016, for a monthly
rent of RMB529,500 from 1 January 2015 to 30 April 2015 and a
monthly rent of RMB555,750 from 1 May 2015 to 31 December
2016, equivalent to an annual rent of RMB6,564,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015, plus (i) a commission of 5% on the
excess of subletting rental income received by CTCREM over the
rent receivable by SLS under the 2015 SLS Sub-Lease; and (ii)
a commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by CTCREM derived from the property located at No. 2128
Yang Gao Zhong Lu, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 6,527 square meters.

Kunshan Tailian, Hefei Ailian, Shantou Lotus and SLS are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC.

CPG is interested in approximately 64.93% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and is therefore the controlling shareholder
of the Company. At the time the relevant transactions were entered
into and throughout 2015, four members of the Chearavanont
family, namely Mr. Jaran Chiaravanont, Mr. Montri Jiaravanont,
Mr. Sumet Jiaravanon and Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (together,
the “Chearavanont Shareholders”), had a combined 51.31%
shareholding interest in CPG and were also regarded as the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

As each of Anhui Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill,
CTCREM and HOEL is also an indirect subsidiary of CPG, Anhui
Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and HOEL
are connected persons of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules.

As WSL was wholly-owned by a company which was, at the time
when the 2014 Supply Agreement was entered into and throughout
2015, directly held as to 51.31% of its issued share capital by
the Chearavanont Shareholders in aggregate, WSL was then an
associate of the Chearavanont Shareholders and a connected
person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The transactions contemplated under each of the Kunshan Lease,
the Hefei Lease, the Shantou Lease, the 2014 Super Brand
Mall Lease and the 2015 SLS Sub-Lease constituted continuing
connected transactions exempt from independent shareholders’
approval but were subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2014 Purchase Agreement
and the 2014 Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules and they were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 20 December 2013 and 30 April
2014.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 25 November 2013, 14
March 2014, 15 December 2014 and 6 March 2015 and the circulars
dated 5 December 2013 and 4 April 2014.

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements
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during the year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 are as X ZEEHFEE LRWT :
follows:
Actual Approved
Transactions Annual Caps
BHFE
BEBXRS LBR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Non-exempt continuing connected TEHZIFERE
transaction agreements: XEH#E
2014 Purchase Agreement —E-MFERERE 97,078 166,100
2014 Supply Agreement —E-NEMHEWHE 991,377 1,492,900
Exempt continuing connected EHEIFERE
transaction agreements: XEWH#E
Kunshan Lease BLHEEH S 8,198 N/A
Hefei Lease BIREERZE 8,384 N/A
Shantou Lease I EEE & 17 14,930 N/A
2014 Super Brand Mall Lease “E-NEEARESHERR 18,000 18,000
2015 SLS Sub-Lease TE-RFLBERSEHR 7,293 8,000

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Company in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association and laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 29 February 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Lotus Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 50 to 117, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBAEHRESE

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015
and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 February 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEEmik

for the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z-AF+-A=Z+-HLEFE(UAR¥TREN)

e

2015 2014
—2-RF —E-mF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
M 5 AR¥ T AR T
Revenue WA 2 10,660,452 10,911,966
Cost of sales $HE R 14 (8,829,048) (9,073,969)
Gross profit EF 1,831,404 1,837,997
Other revenue Ha = 3 521,273 503,057
Other net loss HihE 8 558 3 (29,347) (24,521)
Distribution and store operating costs EIEEL AR EERA (1,915,061) (1,913,760)
Administrative expenses THEHA (334,339) (350,051)
Profit from operations &SRR 73,930 52,722
Finance costs Bl & R AR 4(a) (73,777) (76,194)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ATER (EE) 4 153 (23,472)
Income tax Frig®t 5 (18,224) (34,972)
Loss for the year FEEE (18,071) (58,444)
Attributable to: BTN AL R :

Equity shareholders of the Company KATRR (17,958) (58,428)
Non-controlling interests IR R (113) (16)
(18,071) (58,444)

Loss per share BRER 8
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARED) (0.08) (0.27)
Diluted (RMB cents) #E(AR%ES) (0.08) (0.27)

The notes on pages 55 to 117 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEeBEREREMZEBARR
g

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z-AF+ZAZ+-HLEFE (UAR¥TREN)

2015 2014
—E-AF —E-nmEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTR

Loss for the year EEBE (18,071) (58,444)
Other comprehensive income FEHMZEKA
for the year (after tax and (RBRESEFAESR)

reclassification adjustments)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEZAWESEZER

to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange differences on translation of BEREARLH

financial statements of entities outside (TR E L) LS 5] B 3

the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) WECELELE 5,956 (957)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZ2HEW AL (12,115) (59,401)
Attributable to: LN AL B
Equity shareholders of the Company KATRR (12,002) (59,385)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (113) (16)

(12,115) (59,401)

The notes on pages 55 to 117 form part of these financial 558 117E M ANBHRE 24 o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IS AR Ak
e

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(UMAR¥THREN)
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
s —E-mF
T=A=+—-B| t=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Mt & ARBTR ARBTR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-EERRE 9 1,661,887 1,544,735
Interests in leasehold land held for own EEHEsEALH 9
use under operating leases HE#E 135,358 141,652
1,797,245 1,686,387
Intangible assets BYEE 10 166,481 181,147
Goodwill Lk 1 2,911,778 2,911,778
Prepaid lease payments for premises BANEREE 13 20,852 36,645
Other long-term prepayments HiRHMENER 3,390 5,083
Deferred tax assets REBEEE 23(b) 31,262 25,329
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4,931,008 | 4,846,369
Current assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments for premises HAMEREE 13 12,849 12,859
Inventories T?ﬁ 14 1,221,436 1,058,912
Trade and other receivables 2EREMERIE 15 737,066 815,081
Pledged bank deposits EIRIFRITER 16 59,436 71,881
Cash and cash equivalents BeNhBEEEH 17 165,842 140,054
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2,196,629 | 2,098,787
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables =B R 2 RIE 18 3,764,731 3,557,155
Bank loans RITEN 19 267,118 121,497
Other loans &N 20 43,500 -
Obligations under finance leases MEHSEE 21 9,895 8,968
Current taxation DHEAFR IR 23(a) 20,402 14,592
Provisions B 22 1,101 471
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4,106,747 | 3,702,683
Net current liabilites RBEEFESE . _|.._...(910118] (1,603,896)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAR | 3,020,890 | 3,242,473
Non-current liabilities *kRBEE
Bank loans RITER 19 774,860 981,768
Other loans Hi g 20 - 40,961
Obligations under finance leases BmEHEEE 21 153,784 163,679
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 23(b) 42,225 45,950
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 970,869 | 1,232,358
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,050,021 2,010,115
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERREE
Share capital R 24(c) 405,726 396,093
Reserves EXE] 1,642,671 1,612,285
Total equity attributable to equity ZIS" IR REL
shareholders of the Company R 2,048,397 2,008,378
Non-controlling interests éF?“HﬂEﬁ‘ﬁ 1,624 1,737
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 2,050,021 2,010,115

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R-ZE—XE-_B-_+HBEZEESHERE
29 February 2016. REF) 2 o

Soopakij Chearavanont Umroong Sanphasitvong

MEA
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 55 to 117 form part of these financial 558 117EH ZHSEIARMERE 24 o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TAERERBHERK
53|

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z-AF+ZAZ+-HLEFE (UAR¥TREN)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KLARRES
Share Non-
Share Share option  Revaluation Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
A& RABE  BRERE Efiff B ZiEE BE  FERER EL

(note 24(c))  (note 24(d))  (note24(d))  (note 24(d)) (note 24(d))
(ioae)  (WE2d)  (W&2d()  (W&E2d()  (HE24()
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR  AR®TR

At1 January 2014 R-E-WE-A-A 396,093 1,836,932 53,841 (9,166) 235,886 (445,823) 2,067,763 1,753 2,069,516
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - (58,428) (58,428) (16) (58,444)
Other comprehensive income ~ E2EHA - - - - (957) - (957) - (957)

Total comprehensive income ~~ FEZAUALE

i o s O vt S s S iy . B
At 31 December 2014 RoE-ME+-BZ+-B 306093 1836932 53,841 (0166 234929 (50425 2008378 173 2010115
Ay S RERERACR e meew S I mams Gwa) 20w M oS
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - (17,958) (17,958) (113) (18,071)
Other comprehensive income ~ E2EHA - - - - 5,956 - 5,956 - 5,956

Total comprehensive income ~~ FEZAUALE

for the year . . - . 5956 (7958 (12000 (13 (12,115)
Shares issued upon exercise of  TEBREME (T2

share options (note 24(c)) Tt (W E24(c)) 9,633 96,29 (53,841) - - - 52,021 - 52,021

At 31 December 2015 RZB-RETZAZ1-B 405726 1,933,161 - (9,166) 240,885 (522,209) 2,048,397 1,624 2,050,021

The notes on pages 55 to 117 form part of these financial 558 117E 2RI E 224
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTREHRRK

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-Z-AF+=A=+-—

W

AIEFE(MARBTREMN)

2015 2014
—E-E%F —E-E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wizt AR¥TR AR®T R
Operating activities BEXY
Profit/(Loss) before taxation BRE AR (BE) 153 (23,472)
Adjustments for: BKUTHE o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE - FERIBITE 4(c) 181,129 170,179
Amortisation of land lease premium T AEER 2 4(c) 6,294 6,294
Amortisation of intangible assets BN EE 2B 4(c) 10,838 11,609
Impairment losses WEER 3 15,020 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEW¥ - EERREZER 3 10,565 17,554
Gain on disposal of seven stores to [BWhole Sino Limited (TWSLJ)
Whole Sino Limited (“WSL”)  HEERIEHZEF 31 - (294)
Finance costs A& KK 4(a) 73,777 76,194
Interest income FISWA 3 (4,490) (5,090)
Foreign exchange loss SMEEE K18 69,140 4,021
Gain on the forward foreign exchange contracts BEHNEBRESHNZET 3 (72,765) -
Operating profit before changes in EEESEBHEBERR

working capital 289,661 256,995
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid lease payments BEANELEE

for premises D,/ (1 m) 15,803 (7,911)
Increase in inventories FEEM = (162,524) (16,465)
Decrease in bank deposits pledged for inventory FEREROEIERZ

purchases and guarantees to landlords RITEZEARD ‘ 12,445 32,580
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables & & Kk E KA (2 0) /B (35,396) 247,686
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables HERHEMENTEEM (BD) 208,207 (233,979)
Cash generated from operations BEEL RS 328,196 278,906
PRC tax paid AR ERE 23(a) (22,072) (40:328)
Net cash generated from operating activities = EEXHELREF® | 306,124 | 238,578
Investing activities REXHK
Payment for purchases of property, BENE BERRE

plant and equipment pASE (324,739) (249,331)
Interest received 2RFE 4,490 5,090
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE FEERRE

plant and equipment 28 4,530 22,457
Net cash inflows from disposal HELREHFWSLZ RS

of seven stores to WSL RA R 31 188,545 10,802
Net cash used in investing activities REXBERACRSRR | (27,174 (210,982)
Financing activities Eﬁﬁ#iﬁ
Repayment of bank loans RITERZEN (126,033) (71,871)
Capital element of finance leases paid FHRERE RS BH (8,968) (7,783)
Interest element of finance leases paid §Zﬁﬁﬂﬁ$ﬁh2ﬂ§%ﬁﬁ (16,653) (17,478)
Interest on bank loans paid TERZAE (48,445) (48,991)
Interest on other loans paid Eﬁﬁﬁ L2 FIE (775) (724)
Interest on issuance of bank accepted bills RITBECALERRER (4,361) (4,553)
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees paid INERRERERER (1,219) 2, 369)
Net proceeds from exercise of share options TEEREZRETE 24(c) 52,021
Net cash used in financing activities REXBERZREFE (154,429) (153,769)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBEEH

cash equivalents #Bm/ (D)2 24,521 (126,173)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9I\ﬁ%‘E$E§ZE; £ 1,267 71
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—-BzREeRBEEH 140,054 266,156
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZA=+-HzR&

RRLEE 17 165,842 140,054

The notes on pages 55 to 117 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 5 B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

As the Group’s hypermarket stores are all located in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries, the financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB18.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB1,910.1 million.

In view of these circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 5 B EE

e

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The directors note that the Group’s profit from operations
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was
approximately RMB73.9 million and RMB52.7 million
respectively. In addition, the Group generated cash from
operating activities of approximately RMB306.1 million
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has received a letter of support from its
ultimate holding company, which confirmed that it will
continue to provide adequate support to the Group so as
to enable it to continue its operations for the foreseeable
future. The Directors consider that the ultimate holding
company will continue, and be able, to do so.

Based on the Group’s 2016 business plan and cash flow
forecast and the letter of support provided by the ultimate
holding company, the directors consider that the Group
will have sufficient financial resources for its working
capital and capital expenditure requirements and that it will
be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair
value as explained in note 1(h).

Use of estimation and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 5 B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Use of estimation and judgement (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 34.

Change in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

e Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

These developments do not have an impact on the Group’s
financial results or financial position.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cashflows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 5 B EE

e

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and the total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
over (ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 1(1)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(k)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

1)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
adopted for the purpose of calculating depreciation during
the periods presented are as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 30
years after the date of completion.

-  Leasehold improvements 13 — 20 years or over

the remaining term of
the lease, whichever is

shorter
—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 8 years
—  Motor vehicles 3 - 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories
when the stores are substantially ready for their intended
use. No depreciation is provided in respect of stores under
fit out.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects
of operating leases acquired in a business combination
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the remaining
lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

() Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.
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B 5 ¥ 5 B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

— interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
- prepaid lease payments for premises; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the moving weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(l)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(u)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

®

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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1 FESHEE (&)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customers. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(i) Promotion and service income
Promotion and service income not related to the

purchase of goods are recognised when the services
are rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Except as noted
below, exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.
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BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currency (Continued)

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
The assets and liabilities of entities outside the PRC are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted

or complete.

(v) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 2 WA RS IEBER

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Revenue represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added
taxes.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment — operation of hypermarket stores in the
PRC.

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

AEBZEZXBIRTELE AR
meWADNAEERIRBEHESR
WERR Bz B REHIRERE « TN RIEE
B e

AEBzEEERZSHEL  BEEEZR
SEAEBERAERI10% °

FRBE N RER ZWARBERFERAEE
FMEEXREEEENVNTE - Bt - K&
EEA-—EXEBRBED M -—NPEELE
REBS o

3 HttWEKHMEEFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T AR TR
Other revenue Hfh W 2
Leasing of store premises EEYMERERA 432,125 413,500
Other promotion and service income H i E R R WA 76,058 71,495
Interest income FE U A 4,490 5,090
Government grants (note (i)) RS 78 B (B EE()) 8,600 12,972
521,273 503,057
Other net loss HitE | EE
Net foreign exchange loss B H B8 T4 (68,472) (5,701)
Gain on the forward foreign exchange RHMEBRE SN ZEF
contracts (note 15) (FF&EE15) 72,765 -
Net loss from store project BUEIE ST Sl 2
cancellations (note (ii) B 1E 7 F 58 (B (i) (8,055) (1,560)
Net gain on disposal of seven stores BWSLEE Lt R/EH 2
to WSL (note 31) am A FER (MEE31) - 294
Impairment losses VERIEN ST
- property, plant and equipment -ME- -EERRE
(note 9(a)) (Bt 5F9(a)) (11,192) -
- intangible assets (note 10) -EEEE (M3E10) (3,828) -
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE EERRE
plant and equipment ZEBFE (10,565) (17,554)
(29,347) (24,521)

Notes:

(i) Government grants represent subsidies received from local
authorities.

(i)  This represents the losses incurred in relation to the cancellation
of certain store-opening projects in 2015.

B &E
BUR B R i 5 BUF IR 2 2 8h

U]

(i)

LA -Z-RAFHUHE TREEFRZ

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

4 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

4 BRBANGEF, (FHB)
BBAIRA (BR) BRI REE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T AR TR
(a) Finance costs: () RERA:
Interest on borrowings wholly-repayable REFRABEEEZEZ
within five years: BERAE
- Bank loans —RITER 48,445 48,991
- Other loans —HMERK 775 724
Finance charges on obligations RMEHESETZME
under finance leases (note 21) & A (HfsE21) 16,653 17,478
Interest on issuance of bank RITEHEH AR
accepted bills EZRNE 4,361 4,553
Total interest expense on financial FRAANBETTABREZ
liabilities not at fair value through Eal =N pa S =
profit or loss 70,234 71,746
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees ERZHRERER 3,543 4,448
73,777 76,194
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T ARBT T
(b) Staff costs: (b) EERA:
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  TERHMER 844,814 858,997
Contributions to defined E R R REH S
contribution retirement plans (note 29) 2 R (FEE29) 84,939 79,971
929,753 938,968
2015 2014
—®-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBTR
(c) Other items: (c) HfbiEA :
Depreciation (note 9(a)) & (MIEE9(a)) 181,129 170,179
Amortisation 1# 85
- land lease premium (note 9(a)) - THhHEER
(FFEF9(a)) 6,294 6,294
- intangible assets (note 10) -#EEEE (H&E10) 10,838 11,609
Auditors’ remuneration BEE &
- audit services —EET IR 3,600 3,780
Operating lease charges EEHEEH
— property rentals -MERE 485,997 479,617
Donations B 4 7
Cost of inventories (note 14) FEAA (MEE14) 8,829,048 9,073,969
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 RGZEBEBZXRZHEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) REEBERBERZHED:
represents:
2015 2014
—®B-EHF —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR TR
Current tax - PRC B HABL 18 — AP
Provision for the year FERE 31,733 34,509
(Over)/under-provision in respect FEE (B8 KARERE
of prior years (3,851) 1,402
27,882 35,911
Deferred tax B IE
Origination and reversal of temporary EEREBERELE
differences (note 23(b)) (P 5E23(b)) (9,658) (939)
Taxation expense HEER 18,224 34,972

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any
assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law”) of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2014: 25%) on their
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the
CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on the foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign invested enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2015, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had accumulated losses and
therefore no deferred tax liabilities were recognised in this
regard.

PSR EE R AR 2 BITHR RS

;_o

HRAR TR EHME A RREREE
EEEAERBER > HRAFER
RAABBREGHAEHEE -

REFSHENABERRHE 2 X
PIRER  AREMERHERER
REERRHSELEETMREHR -

REBPELEMESR L ([REMEH
E1) 0 AREBRFBEKIL 2B QA
ZEFR AR EIRCEMER LS
25% (ZZE— U4 : 25%) °

LEoh - RIEEREBET - BAER
BEhERER-_ZBNF-A—HE
Fir BB 2 8 7 0] B g SNR B & 2k
RE - BE10%EBEREDIK 2N
Bo-R-F-—HF+ZA=+—H"
AEBEzHENBRAREERTE
B At BEHEEEESRS

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-A5+t-A=1t—HALEE(RBEHBEN  UARETHEN)
5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 MGEBEERZIEH (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) HEEAESENRBEARETE
profit at applicable tax rates: ZEBERIMT
2015 2014
—E-AEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T R ARBT T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ARA (BE) 153 (23,472)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before B25% 5t & Z BRFL Al
taxation, calculated at 25% w8 BERE
(2014: 25%) (note) (ZE—F : 25%) (M) 38 (5,868)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years AFEE (ﬁ%ﬁ)/*i%ﬁ%ﬂ% (3,851) 1,402
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses IR ﬁzﬂﬁ% ‘?/ =4 14,126 11,458
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEBRBWMA BT E (16,849) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ﬂiﬁﬁ AR E R E 28,296 23,100
Tax effect of prior year’s recognised HH/F@EEEEE
tax losses expired/reversed *RIEEHE ZHBLE 2,135 4,002
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised FREIFRERREER
tax losses utilised 2R E (6,268) -
Tax effect of temporary differences *ﬁﬁa’c’»%ﬁﬂ-riﬁﬁ
not recognised ZHBLE 597 878
Actual tax expense ERHIEER 18,224 34,972

MizE: AR AEBTERPRLEE &
BL25% (ZZ—[N4& : 25%) 2 &
Bl EMEHBMETE -

Note: The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%)
is used as the operations of the Group are substantially
based in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(BRSERBI UARBTREN)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBEB D AMEHEI83NER(AT (]
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEEFRER) RO F2BWEES
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015: BE-Z-HAF+-A=+—HLEE:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contributions Sub-total payments Total
§4 2ER NRGA
EZNE  FRENE  ME2RA  BASHR It ERxA a%
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARBTRT ARETR ARETx
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont ~ HE A% E - 4,702 - 14 4,716 - 4,716
Mr. Li Wen Hai FEERE - 4,826 - - 4,826 - 4,82
Mr. Narong Chearavanont AEmEE - 3,537 - - 3,537 - 3,537
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed REELE - 4,357 - 14 4,31 - 4,31
Mr. Michael Ross EREEE - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BIEEE - 221 - 1 228 - 228
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont ARARE - 753 - - 753 - 753
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ #f#A{- %% - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong ~ Umroong Sanphasitvong’t & - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul ~ Piyawat Titasattavorakul %4 - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit%t & 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara ~ Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. ltthaporm Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong’t 4 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech%: 4 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BEAEE 193 - - - 193 - 193
Total a5 965 18,402 - 29 19,396 - 19,396

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014: BE-_Z—NFE+-A=+—HLEFE:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus  contributions Sub-total payments Total
% 2ER HRHB A
E2pe  FRETE BEZRL  BHEER it B f g

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR  ARRTR ARRTR ARETR

Executive directors BTES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont  HE A L4 - 4,670 - 13 4,683 - 4,683
Mr. Li Wen Hai SEELE - 3,640 - - 3,640 - 3,640
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HEMAE - 5,012 - - 5,012 - 5,012
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE %4 - 4,294 - 13 4,307 - 4,307
Mr. Michael Ross BRIELE - 3,684 - - 3,684 - 3,684
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BOERE - 3,898 - 13 3,911 - 3,911
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont E R vits - 742 - - 742 - 742

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ $1#1{- %% - - - - _ _ -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong ~ Umroong Sanphasitvong?t & - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul  Piyawat Titasattavorakul% & - - - - - - -

Independent non-executive BYFHTEES

directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit & 190 - - - 190 - 190
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 190 - - - 190 - 190
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporm Subhawong % 4 190 - - - 190 - 190
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech’t & 190 - - - 190 - 190
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo et e 190 - - - 190 - 190
Total &% 950 25,940 - 39 26,929 - 26,929
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there BEE-_E—ARAERFR=-_FE—NWE+=A
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors =+ —HItZEER  NEEHMEOES
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as IR ENESEEABEMAREERRR
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived hn B 2 SR BN S B R 2 BE(E o b 0 RE
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2015 and AR E-—RAER-E—NE+=Z/F=+—
2014. BEZFER BMESEHERTAME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

7

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2014:
five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 6.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one

(2014: nil) individual is as follows:

REHNES

§:£m>zﬁ$ _g

2015 2014
—E-RE —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Salaries and other emoluments FekHEMME 4,744 -
Discretionary bonus BE 2 A - -
Share-based payments R BERZ A - -
Retirement scheme contributions BINE MR - -
4,744 -
LOSS PER SHARE 8 BRERE
(a) Basic (a) EX
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the SRENSERTHENSE
following data:
2015 2014
—2-hE =F-mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBT T
Loss for the year attributable to equity KRR RELEZFE
shareholders of the Company 18 (17,958) (58,428)

The weighted average number of shares is calculated

based on the following data:

MEFERDEBE AT HERTE

2015 2014
—E-5H%F —ZE-mF
Number of ordinary shares R—A—RHEB#®TZ
in issue at 1 January ZERBRE 10,408,271,730 | 10,408,271,730
Effect of ordinary shares issued upon R-ZE—HAFHEA-1T—H
exercise of share options TEEREMBTEER
on 21 May 2015 2 376,520,955 -
Number of Series A convertible EBIT ARSI AR
preference shares in issue BRI RE 1,518,807,075 | 1,518,807,075
Number of Series B convertible 2 ETZBAIIARRK
preference shares in issue BERBEH 3,897,110,334 | 3,897,110,334
Number of Series C convertible EZ@S?TZC% EICIE:=:)
preference shares in issue BERKRE 3,671,509,764 | 3,671,509,764
Number of Series D convertible BT 2DR AR
preference shares in issue BERRE 2,211,382,609 | 2,211,382,609
Total RER 22,083,602,467 | 21,707,081,512
As set out in note 24(c), the holders of the convertible RIBMEE24(c) » ATRRELERIFTE A
preference shares are entitled to receive the same NEEHZEKREEAKBMEERE
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. ZFER o
(b) Diluted (b) #8
The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 RBE_E-—FEF_E—NE+=
December 2015 and 2014 are the same as the basic loss A=+—BHBILSEE2EREBEEEHE
per share as all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive. SRENSGERAE  REEZEZE
IR R E I o

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

9 MEX - FERKREREE
+ ih

BE-T-EF+-A=t-ALFE(RIERBHN UARSTAER)
9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 5 B RE

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEZYHER
Interests in
leasehold
Furniture, land held for
fixtures Stores own use under
Leasehold and Motor under operating
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
G %8 EERECERA
| £ HE%E ET RE  EBPZER Mt tHEEER 8E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR AR®Tr ARETR  AR¥Tr  ARETR  AR¥ETR  AR%TR
Cost: RA
At 1 January 2014 RZE-RE-F-H 234,340 1,852,379 546,255 24,721 39,645 2,697,340 201,042 2,898,382
Exchange adjustments EREE - - 18 42 - 60 - 60
Additions RE - 38,237 36,647 769 173,678 249,331 - 249,331
Transfer #i - 88,656 90,375 2,703 (181,734) - - -
Disposals e - (68,916) (55,436) (2,729) (4419 (131,500 - (131,500)
Disposal to WSL (note 31) HEFWSL (HEF31) (16) (321,884) (54,042) (2,225) (39) (378,206) - (378,206)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-F=1-H 234,324 1,588,472 563,817 23,281 27,131 2,437,025 201,042 2,638,067
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-1%-f-H 234,324 1,588,472 563,817 23,281 27,131 2,437,025 201,042 2,638,067
Exchange adjustments ERER - - 133 110 - 243 - 243
Additions RE - 2,308 32,137 12,531 277,763 324,739 - 324,739
Transfer % - 170,787 114,536 910 (286,233) - - -
Disposals HE - (14,633) (57,399) (5,576) 270) (77,879) - (77.878)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-EF+-R=1-H 234,324 1,746,934 653,224 31,256 18,391 2,684,129 201,042 2,885,171
Accumulated depreciation R TERAERKE:
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 R-E-ME-F-H 88,800 658,830 213,791 12,485 634 974,540 53,096 1,027,636
Exchange adjustments ERRE - - 17 39 - 56 - 56
Charge for the year FERER 11,406 99,465 56,915 2,393 - 170,179 6,294 176,473
Written back on disposal  HEZES - (43,645) (44,913) 2,297) (634) (91,489) - (91,489)
Written back on disposal HEFWSLZEH
to WSL (note 31) (H3E31) () (121,414) (37,837) (1,740) - (160,996) - (160,996)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-F=1-H 100,201 593,236 187,973 10,880 - 892,290 59,390 951,680
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-1%-f-H 100,201 593,236 187,973 10,880 - 892,290 59,390 951,680
Exchange adjustments EiER - - 130 284 - 414 - 414
Charge for the year EERER 11,405 92,595 70,139 6,990 - 181,129 6,294 187,423
Impairment losses (note 3) A& (Kf3E3) - 7,920 3,272 - - 11,192 - 11,192
Written back on disposal  HEZES - (12,574) (46,644) (3,565 - (62,783) - (62,783)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-EF+-F=1-H 111,606 681,177 214,870 14,589 - 1,022,242 65,684 1,087,926
Net book value: REE:
At 31 December 2015 RZE-REE+ZA=1-8 122,718 1,065,757 438,354 16,667 18,391 1,661,887 135,358 1,797,245
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-ZA=1-H 134,123 995,236 375,844 12,401 27,131 1,544,735 141,652 1,686,387
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)
Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2015, leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, and intangible assets
used in certain stores of the Group were stated net of
impairment losses of RMB7,920,000, RMB3,272,000 and
RMB3,828,000 respectively. In calculating these losses,
the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets were
determined on the basis of their value in use. The pre-tax
discount rate of 11% used reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs.

9 ME - FERKRBRHEE
T i ()

(a)

AR {8 2 ¥ AR (4]
T E R

R-IE-—HFE+ZB=+—H K&
EETEH2BEEREE &AL -£E
EREBEREFEEEZY R B2 5
kA ARE7,920,0000T - AR
3,272,000t & A R #3,828,0007T 2
BEEBE  NEREEE - HBE
ENAWREHEZEFEAEEME
E o AR ZEA11 % RRBIET IS
FEESELBENCSBEBEENRE
SEEBNEBE AR -

The analysis of net book value of properties is as (b) MEZEREEIWNNOT :
follows:
2015 2014
—®B-IF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREFT T
In the PRC RABER
— medium-term leases - HEEE 258,076 275,775
Representing: T
Buildings BF 122,718 134,123
Interests in leasehold land held EEHEEZAA
for own use under operating leases THEEES 135,358 141,652
258,076 275,775
Assets held under finance leases (c) MEHEREZEE

At 31 December 2015, the net book value of buildings held
under finance leases of the Group was RMB102,449,000
(2014: RMB113,246,000). The leases do not include
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC
and held under medium term land use rights.

RIBE-HFE+ZA=+—H K&
EREEERF 2 REEAARY
102,449,000t (=& —MF : AR
113,246,0007t) > WHEIW FEIES
AEE - BFNURAE > WUAFHL
HERESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

10 BB E

2015 2014
—®B-EF —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREBT
Cost: AR
At 1 January m—HB—H 237,250 263,250
Disposal to WSL (note 31) H & FWSL (FftEE31) - (26,000)
At 31 December BR+=-—A=+—H 237,250 237,250
Accumulated amortisation/and R E#Y RBEERE
impairment losses:
At 1 January w—HB—H 56,103 57,223
Charge for the year FERER 10,838 11,609
Impairment loss (notes 3 and 9(a)) BEEE (M EE3%9()) 3,828 -
Written back on disposal to WSL (note 31) & FWSLz B # (KfFE31) - (12,729)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 70,769 56,103
Net book value: BRTHE B 166,481 181,147

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements
acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and 2012.
The fair value on acquisition was determined based on a
valuation report prepared by independent third party valuers
and comparison of the market rental rates at the dates of
acquisition and the estimated present value of payments
due under the lease contracts entered into by the acquired

subsidiaries. The intangible assets are amortised using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms which vary

from 10 to 30 years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution

BREEER_ZZNFR-_Z--FI
BHEARMEE e BRE R -
WEZARABERBYE=FHEMREZ
HERSERER 2 HmEESLEERE K
BHEBARSKITHESREMNRIB 2GR
REMEE BYEEUERERHTHE
BB (R10E30F T %) #H -

REAZHHEERBENGRBEERRNZ

and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of [RJEE AR EERA] o
profit or loss.
11 B8
11 GOODWILL
2015 2014
—®2-IfF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARB T
Cost: AR
At 1 January n—A—H 2,962,782 3,205,282
Disposal to WSL (note 31) H & FWSL (FftEE31) - (242,500)
At 31 December Rt=ZRAR=+—H 2,962,782 2,962,782
Accumulated impairment losses: R EEE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+=ZA=+—H (51,004) (51,004)
Carrying amount: BRMEE -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,911,778 2,911,778
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

11 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of
goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs as follows:

11 FE (&)

BEREZRESEAEURENR

R-EBE-—FER-_ZFE-—NFE+=-_A=+—
B AEcREEIBEEXAEEZREE
EBEWT

2015 2014
—®-EF —E-NF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®BT ARBT T

East China Region ERIWE 2,784,373 2,784,373
South China Region EmihE 124,007 124,007
North China Region FEiHE 3,398 3,398
2,911,778 2,911,778

During the year ended 31 December 2014, goodwill of RMB
242,500,000 previously included in the East China region was
allocated to the subsidiaries and assets sold to WSL (note 31).

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is determined
based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions for
the value in use calculations are those relating to the discount
rate, forecast growth rates, and the expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period, which are
extrapolated up to the following ten years by using estimated
growth rates of 0% - 5% per annum (2014: 0% to 5% per
annum). The forecasts are extrapolated beyond ten years
based on estimated long-term average growth rates of 2%
(2014: 2%) per annum. The growth rates used do not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the business in which
the CGU operates. The pre-tax discount rate of 11% (2014:
11%) used reflects the current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in
gross margin, selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

No impairment losses at goodwill were recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs so determined were higher
than their carrying amounts.

BE-_Z—NFE+ZA=+—HizH&
ER TAEEEERIECEEARE
242,500,0007tc * B 2 B E B & FWSL
ZHBATREE (H:E31)

BRI REEEEMAIREBREFEER
EREE FEERBEZEZERRDE
BBRR  FRARREREEEEEK
ReafE -  WEHEFACRBREE
REENCEEEEMEZ —FHUK
AE  WABFONESK (ZF—HNF :
BFO%ESY) ZEFHEREMERE R
RHE - BBETFNRERDERGTEF
2% (ZZF—MF 1 2%) NRPFEGERE
MEE - FIRANERESTEHESE
EBNAETENRBFIIERE - HiA
BEEHNM% (ZT-HF 1 11%) RRE
EmSTEREELBENV S RAFHER
REeELBENRAE AR - £F - EEH
HEAAN S EERBEEMN KA R
ZHIHHE -

BE-S-—HFER-B-—ME+=f
S+-BEZEER  ARENRLES
BUFEE 2 A REBEREEAES
BREEREERZER -
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12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The Group’s effective interest in the
entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The
entities below are all companies established in the PRC with

12 B R AER

UTHREBSTEXELAEEXE &
EFEB2AEEHNBRARER - AEH
RUTREZBMERZRBEADEZH
BRRFE - ATEEGARPERLZ
BREMELQF -

limited liability.
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
AREHE ERREHRA KEBzBENER
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1E “Z2-mE§ ZE-1%f CZE-0OF
% %
LB NEREHBTARAR USD25,000,000% 7T USD25,000,000% 7t 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Kt&E1)
B GIETEEEMERLT RMB A K #19,000,000 T RMBA K#19,000,0007 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Ff&E1)
BHZNETEHBTERAA USD5,000,000% 7t/ USD5,000,000% 7t/ 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD4,922,924% 7t USD4,922,924% 7t
(note 1) (FfzF1)
EESVEREHBTARAT USD6,500,000 7t USD6,500,000% 7t 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K &F1)
EMNZNETEHBTERAA USD48,000,000% 7t USD48,000,000% T 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (M &E1)
WESNEREERTERLA USD12,000,0003% 7t USD12,000,000% 7t 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) (Kf&E3)
BUTHEEERRHERRERAT RMB A K #3,000,000 7T RMBA K #3,000,0007T 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 1) (M &E1)
Development Co., Ltd.
EREFEHERRERAA RMB A [ #29,500,0007 RMBA E#29,500,0007 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 1) (K1)
Development Co., Ltd.
TEGNEREHBTERAA USD180,000,000 7t/ USD132,200,000% 7t 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD132,200,000% 7
(note 1) (Kt&F1)
IEREBWHLERAR RMB A K #25,000,0007T RMBA K #25,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 1) (fF&E1)
LERERTERAA RMB A & #10,000,0007C RMBA E#10,000,0007¢ 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (M &E4)
IERERMEBRAR RMB A K #60,000,0007 RMBA K #60,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K 4)
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12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12 B2 B ER (&)

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
ARABE T REHRAR AEEzENER
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1% “EZ-{NFE -Z-1f CZE-NF
% %
HRBREETERAR RMBA & #500,0007 RMBA R #500,0007T 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ktz£4)
BUREBTERAR RMB A #10,000,0007 RMBA K %10,000,0007 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Fi&E4)
LERERTARAA RMB A & #13,500,000 RMBA K #13,500,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Kt&E1)
LEEERTARAR RMB A K #13,500,0007 RMBA K %13,500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (M 1)
BT NEEREREABRAR RMB A K 8,949,000 7T RMBA [ #8,949,0007C 100 100
Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (note 4, 5) (fi#zE4 ~ 5)
NEERLEEBERAA USD16,800,0005 7t USD16,800,000% 7t 100 100
C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (note 1, 5) (ff&1 -~ 5)
LEERNMARBRAA RMB A & #1,000,0007 RMBA K %1,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (ffzF2 + 5)
LB NEELBRRARAA RMB A K #10,000,0007 RMBA K %10,000,0007 80 80
Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd. (note 3, 5) (&3 > 5)
HREEEZERAA RMB A K #600,0007 RMBA K #600,0007T 100 100
Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (Ki&F2~ 5)
BRFEEHETERAR RMB A R #14,500,0007 RMBA R #14,500,0007 100 100
Wuxi Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (F&E1)
BREERTERAA RMB A K #14,500,0007 RMBA R #14,500,0007 100 100
Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (B &E1)
RONERTERDLA RMB A K #14,500,0007¢ RMBA K #14,500,0007¢ 100 100
Changsha Chulian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Kt&E1)
BMNBEEEHBTERL T RMB A K 6,000,000 RMBA K #6,000,0007 100 100
Xuzhou Yalian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Fi&E4)
I NEERETERAR RMB A  #10,000,0007 RMBA E #10,000,0007 100 100
Zhanjiang C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K z4)
EMNEERRTERAT RMB A K #3,000,0007¢ - 100 -
Guangzhou C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (t&F4)
WESTRE NEERBTERAA RMB A & #20,000,0007C - 100 -
Shantou Jinping Dongxia C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Ktz£4)
WEEERL NEERBTAERAF RMB A K #3,000,0007¢ - 100 -

Shantou Chaoyang Mianbei C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd.

(note 4) (K &*4)

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

13

Notes:

M
@

These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

The equity interest is held by individual nominees on behalf of
the Company. These companies are domestic enterprises in the
PRC legally owned by PRC nationals. Pursuant to the various
agreements in place between the Group and the nominees, the
Group operates the business owned by the nominee companies
and in return is entitled to all the profit or loss from the operation
of the nominee companies. As the Group bears the risks and
rewards of its operation of the nominee companies, the directors
of the Company, after taking legal advice, consider that the
Group has effective control over these enterprises. Therefore
the financial results and positions of these enterprises have
been consolidated into the Group since their respective dates of
establishment.

These are Sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC.

These are domestic enterprises in the PRC. Guangzhou C.P.
Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd., Shantou Jinping Dongxia C.P. Lotus
Supermarket Co., Ltd. and Shantou Chaoyang Mianbei C.P. Lotus
Supermarket Co., Ltd. are newly established in the PRC in 2015.

C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. and Foshan C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of logistic services. Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods
Co., Ltd. and Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of sourcing products. All other companies listed above
are involved in the operation of hypermarket stores in the PRC.

12 B2 B ER (&)

B &E -

M
@)

HERIEBERSE -

HAEEREBEAREDTFERARER o It
ZNEYHPEBRASERE Z2FEK
Wi RIEAEBEEREACT Y 25
T AEBELEHREQRAFHE2HE
BRAKEESREQRAEE ZAEENR
BB - ARAEEAEREAEERED
AlzEBR WG  RARRERLEZEERE
BERE  RRFEEEAERIEGER L
EhHE . At EDESBBEERMR
MEEZAZHIBGERAEER -

HERRPBERL 2T IEERE-

HWERRPEZARRZE o EMN NEETR
BHmARDE IESTPRE MNEETEH
mARDBARUER G NEEEE D
ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ%zﬁ—ﬁfﬁﬁ’é%@ﬁiﬁz%ﬁﬂ

MEERCEEBRERLT - HAEEHE
T2WEARREEERE - LBERY
RARDBRMHILTH MEEREEZRE
RABDREYRRH - LENEESZER
mARAARAREEEZERAANRE
REEMm - IEEM LS 2 A TR E
BERBBHER -

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR 13 ENYXEESR
PREMISES
2015 2014
—E-IF —E-mEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBET T
At 1 January m—HB—H 49,504 41,593
Additions 30 - 17,500
Charged to profit or loss for the year FERNINLZZEEHD (15,803) (9,589)
At 31 December BR+=ZA=+—H 33,701 49,504
Represented by: DElE
Non-current portion Ik BN HA R 42 20,852 36,645
Current portion BN HR ER 1 12,849 12,859
33,701 49,504

These amounts represent prepaid rentals for hypermarket
stores operated by the Group.

Annual Report 2015 %%

hEHBEDAEELEREBD 2RANHE
8-



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3 &5 B &
%0

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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14 INVENTORIES 14 78
All inventories as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December FRER-E—FRFE+=-_B=+—HEZ==
2014 are trading merchandise. The analysis of the amount of —mNE+A=+—HZBEEYAESH
inventories recognised as an expense is as follows: meERAETHZ2FEHEINMWT
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHLTFECRAE 8,813,853 9,056,677
Write-down of inventories FEZRE 15,195 17,292
8,829,048 9,073,969
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EERHtERFIE
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARBT R
Trade receivables & I8 P R IE (i) 38,767 33,982
Other debtors H {th fE UL TR 18 (i) 302,881 262,620
Amounts due from related FE W AE BE (b EEFRIE
companies (note 30(b)) (FFzE30(b)) (i) 319,648 518,479
Derivative financial instruments TESRTIA (ii) 75,770 -
737,066 815,081
(i) All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental () KRHEEHR: ARY6,951,0007T (=
deposits of the Group amounting to RMB96,951,000 (2014: Z—MFE: ARE®71,746,0007T)
RMB71,746,000) are expected to be recovered within one G TEREBZEER A EWSR
year. HESN—FrKE -
Sales to retail customers are mainly made in cash or via EEERZHEEFEURSREHTE
major credit cards. Credit terms of 30 to 90 days are EEABERZ - =ZtTZATHZAR
offered to related companies and corporate customers HEREHFESERR 2 HETER D
with ongoing relationship. FAEFE o
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis REFE=ZERHBELEX2EERK
of trade receivables due from third parties and related HIEBHBRRIEEZRE BRXERH
companies, based on the invoice date (or date of revenue (FUBWATESL B BFRE) » AR
recognition, if earlier) and net of allowance for doubtful ESHRZERESMAOT
debts, is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HE —E-E
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Within 30 days =tTH®R 144,177 167,658
31 to 60 days =+—HZXTH 94,117 95,022
61 to 90 days AT—HEATH 479 1,662
Over 90 days BN+ H 2,753 1,162
241,526 265,504

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-Z-IF+-A=1+-HLFE(RIEHBIH UAR¥ETHEN)
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(i) At 31 December 2015, the Group had a USD non-delivered
forward exchange contract with a notional amount of
USD170,200,000. The forward exchange contract is
recognised as “derivative financial instruments” at its
net fair value of RMB75,770,000 (2014: nil). The forward
exchange contract has maturity of less than one year
after the end of the reporting period, and the amount is
expected to be recovered within one year. The fair value
of the derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period is determined based on the valuation
techniques disclosed in note 26(e).

Included in the Group’s above trade receivables are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB5,225,000
(2014: RMB5,685,000) which are past due at the reporting
date with ageing analysis as follows:

15 EERHEMEKRIRE (F)

(i) RZE—EHEF+ZA=Z+—H =K
£E8E—-E£54170,200,000% T
CERAERIAEZTHERBEN -
NERBENIAFEAARE
75,770,000 (=& — U 4F : ) #E
RETTEERITE |- WINEEHRE
HRBREPRERELONR—FERNTH
RUSBEARR-FAKRE - BEHK
LHIKR  STHESRMIECARBED
gwﬁﬁze(e)ﬁﬂﬁﬁ?Zﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%

E °

AEB LM EERVRBEED
BHEWFES A RYS5,225,000
T (ZZE—MF : AR ¥5,685,000
Jt) RIREBZIRBRDNTAOT

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTT ARBTT

Overdue BHA
1 to 30 days —Z=+H 1,993 2,861
31 to 60 days =+—HBZx~tH 479 1,662
61 to 90 days At+—BEA+H 876 699
Over 90 days HiE N+ e 1,877 463
5,225 5,685

The directors consider no impairment provision is required
in respect of the above trade debtors as they are due
from either related companies controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder or counterparties that have a good
track record with the Group.

16 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2015, RMB49,450,000 (2014: RMB57,278,000)
of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks as
guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for
payments to suppliers.

In addition, at 31 December 2015, RMB9,986,000 (2014:
RMB14,603,000) of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged
to banks for the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of
certain subsidiaries.
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16 CHEFRITER

R-ZE-—RAE+=ZA=+—0 A&EEH
ZBITIER A AR ¥49,450,000T (=&
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AK#9,986,000t (Z&E—NFE : AR¥E
14,603,00070) 2 R EERTERE K IF
FRTUGDETHBE AT ZEREHIER
BR 1 o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 5 B EE

=

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

17 HERBEEER

2015 2014

—E-HE —E-E

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARET ARET T

Cash at bank and in hand RITEERES 165,842 140,054

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to
RMB19,618,000 (2014: RMB18,386,000) are non-interest
bearing.

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEBEME R ERREEEAAR
#£19,618,000t (ZZE—HF : AR
18,386,0007T) °

8 EERHMENFIA

2015 2014

i —T-NF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARBT T

Notes payable BIEE 146,618 138,546
Trade creditors EiERENIE 2,322,090 2,259,093
Advance receipts from customers FEWEE 28 481,291 480,764
Other creditors and accrued charges HttENSFHERENSER 675,167 570,509
Amounts due to related companies (note 30(b)) F& {8 B8 1 2 718 (M 5E30(b)) 139,565 108,243
3,764,731 3,557,155

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

Advance receipts from customers represent the unutilised
balance of prepaid card sold by the Group.

The above balances with related parties are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,468,708,000 (2014:
RMB2,397,639,000) with the following ageing analysis, based
on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting period:

AEERAMRNFRBEAR - FAR
= o

AWEE 2 RERREEBEERNE 2R
fEFERER ©

L EFrA SN T AR BRI B EIE
B AMERZRERERE -

AEBCEEREMENFERFELEER
FHREREMNZHE AKY2,468,708,000
T (ZE—F : AK#¥2397,639,000
U)o HREHRERRBEZZEHIN
M

2015 2014
—®-IF —E-NF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARE TR ARBT T

Uninvoiced purchases AHEBRECZKE 996,750 935,199
Within 30 days =+HR® 1,220,070 1,267,956
31 to 60 days =t+t—Zxt+H 83,436 69,056
61 to 90 days AT—Zh+H 55,535 61,049
More than 90 days BB+ H 112,917 64,379
2,468,708 2,397,639

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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19 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2015, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

19 RITE R

RIE-RF+-A=+—H RITEXR
ZEMEWNT

2015 2014
—EB-IfF —T-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETR

Within 1year o TEW | 2eTms) 121497
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREWNER 322,371 251,683
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFR 452,489 730,085

1,041,978 1,103,265

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank loans are secured/
guaranteed as follows:

RZZ-AF+ZA=1t—R0 AKEHZ
TEREER EROT :

%
IENN

4

hil
|

2015 2014
—E-HE —E-MmE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBT T

Secured bank loans 2IEAIRITER
- Secured by assets held —UAREEZ
by the Group EEEA

1,041,978 1,103,265

At 31 December 2015, the Group has drawn down
floating rate bank loans of USD160,320,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,041,978,000) (2014: USD180,160,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,103,265,000)), bearing interest at three-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.50% per annum (2014:
three-month LIBOR plus 3.50% per annum), which are secured
by the share capital of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
These bank loans were drawn from term loan facilities which
expire on 31 December 2018 with instalment repayments
scheduled during their terms.
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20 OTHER LOANS

21

20 Hib &

2015 2014
—®-EF —E-QNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBT T

Loans from a third party F=ZHAZER

43,500 40,961

The loans from a third party are unsecured and bear interest at
three-month US dollar LIBOR plus 1.50% per annum, which will
be fully repayable in 2016.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2015, the Group had obligations under finance
leases repayable as follows:

BBVE=-FERALERT =M=
TRBRITREEREMERE1.50% > R
—NEREEE -

21 gWEHESHE

R=B—HEF+=A=+-0 A&£EZ
EAREREEENT :

2015 2014
—E-1F — ik
Present Present
value of the Total | value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REEE REESE REEE REEE
NRBEE /St TR E AL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE AR®BTR| ARBTR AR®BTR

Within 1 year —FRx 9,895 25,620 8,968 25,620
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 11,345 26,035 9,895 25,620
After 2 years but within 5 years MFEEEREFR 43,307 79,641 38,496 78,844
After 5 years HE# 99,132 123,372 115,288 150,205
153,784 229,048 163,679 254,669
163,679 254,668 172,647 280,289

Less: Total future interest B RRRE
expenses A% (90,989) (107,642)
Present value of lease obligations HHE&SE 2 HE 163,679 172,647

22 PROVISIONS 22 #1E

As at 31 December 2015, certain suppliers have commenced
legal actions against the Group in respect of disputes on
purchase agreements. Provisions have been made for the
directors’ best estimate of the expected costs associated with
these disputes. The provision balance at 31 December 2015 is
expected to be utilised within one year.

RZZB-RAF+ZRA=+t—RH 5THE
B AR KRBTSR R AR EE
Ak o BEDESHABFMRZABRAE
FHBREECFE - R-F-—HF+-A
ST-RBZREHREARER -FAE
ﬁ o
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED WHEHHERIABERAZ

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 8
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZREMBRRBERAZNEBAFIET :
financial position represents:
2015 2014
—E-EE —E-mE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AR TR
Balance at the beginning FEHANEH
of the year 14,592 19,009
(Over)/under-provision in AFE (B8 K2HE
respect of prior year BE (3,851) 1,402
Provision for PRC income FERAF
tax for the year FriesiE 31,733 34,509
PRC income tax paid 2 ZHEFEH (22,072) (40,328)
20,402 14,592
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CRAZEEREEERAEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERNEERRESMBEMRRBRZ
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BEEMEEE (BE) 2B A5
position and the movements during the year are as follows: REESNT @
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own use
Property, under
plantand  operating  Intangible
Tax losses  equipment leases assets Others Total
nE. EEHEZ
EE BRLi#
REFE k#fE  HEEER BNEE it ag

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETR ARBTRT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARERT:

Deferred tax arising from:  BEBEELHE

At 1 January 2014 RZZ-MmE-f-A 17,945 6,219 (11,244) (51,507) 13,709 (24,878)
Credited/(charged) to A/ (%) 2B H

profit or loss (note 5(a)) (M3F5(a)) (7,409) (602) 942 2,902 5,106 939
Disposal to WSL (note 31)  tH&FWSL (Fi&¥31) - - - 3,318 - 3,318
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+-H 10,536 5,617 (10,302) (45,287) 18,815 (20,621)
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1%5-8-H 10,536 5,617 (10,302) (45,287) 18,815 (20,621)
Credited/(charged) to HP VAL FIES §

profit or loss (note 5(a)) (M3E5(a)) 5,933 (502) 943 3,667 (383) 9,658
At 31 December 2015 RZE-EF+ZA=1-H 16,469 5,115 (9,359) (41,620) 18,432 (10,963)
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
(Continued)

An analysis of the net deferred tax asset and liability is set
out as follows:

WBWEEMBERRBERARNZ
Frig®i ()

(b) ERRBZELERBEERAE (H)

EERBEERBEFR MU

2015 2014

—E-EE —E-E

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR T AR TR

Net deferred tax assets EEFIEEEFRE 31,262 25,329
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIEEEFEE (42,225) (45,950)
(10,963) (20,621)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the items below as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which these items can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

(c) AERZELEHEEE

L3R B ARRE 2R EE E R E i
AHER - B AT B
FEREREEAAMEHE EMEE R
RAERBL 2 mF o

ESHEBHEA

2015 2014

i —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR T ARBT T

Tax losses WIEEE 692,236 795,723
Deductible temporary differences RN B ERE 120,115 117,729
812,351 913,452

Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not
expire, the tax losses can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss originated, and will
expire in the following years:

BRARNRZBREBRLIBEINHEIN
REBEITNBEEEFERL 2R
EFERFEM TRTIIFHEE

2015 2014

—®2-IF —T-NF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T AREEFT T

2015 —E-—REF - 188,128
2016 —E-RE 131,562 129,478
2017 —E—tF 206,576 207,042
2018 —E-N\E 150,211 151,269
2019 —E-AEF 61,596 92,400
2020 —EEF 113,185 -
663,130 768,317

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movement in components of equity

(b)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

24 BA -~ HERKRE

(a)

REBuBnz288

AEEFERENSEARID D
YRR A eR 2 E AR - BRAR
BRESEHERR - ARFAEENE
BEAKED FANRFR2BBFIFTHR
T

Retained
Share earnings/
Share option Exchange (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses) Total
REEA/
ke - BRERE Eifie  (RHER) a8
(Note (d)) (Note (d)) (Note (d)) (Note (e))
(32 (d)) GE) (M) (M)
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AR®TT  AR®TR  AR®TT  ARETR
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-WE-A—H 1,836,932 53,841 (307,858) 891,463 2,474,378
Loss for the year FEFR - - - (383,899) (383,899)
Other comprehensive income HtZ2EKA - - 11,432 - 11,432
Total comprehensive income FEREUAEE
for the year - - 11,432 (383,899) (372,467)
At 31 December 2014 R=B-ME+-A=1-H 1,836,932 53,841 (296,426) 507,564 2,101,911
At 1 January 2015 R-E-HE-F-H 1,836,932 53,841 (296,426) 507,564 2,101,911
Loss for the year FEFR - - - (418,767) (418,767)
Other comprehensive income HtZ2EKA - - 150,317 - 150,317
Total comprehensive income FEREUAEE
for the year - - 150,317 (418,767) (268,450)
Shares issued upon exercises of ~ {THEEREM 1Tk
share options (Note 24(c)) (H3F24(c) 96,229 (53,841) - - 42,388
At 31 December 2015 R-E-EF+-F=1-H 1,933,161 - (146,109) 88,797 1,875,849
Dividends (b) RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the reporting date.
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Authorised and issued share capital

24 A~ EERRE (&)

(c) ZERBBITKRAE

2015 and 2014
—E-REN-E—NE
No. of shares

i &
( 000) HK$’ 000
(F) FExT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares at par value SREE0.02/8 T
of HK$0.02 each ZEBR 34,000,000 680,000
Series A convertible preference shares BREE0.02EB T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each ARG IR R E LR 2,000,000 40,000
Series B convertible preference shares SREE0.02E T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each BRI IRE LR 4,000,000 80,000
Series C convertible preference shares BREEC.02BTZ
at par value of HK$0.02 each CR I IR E LI’ 4,500,000 90,000
Series D convertible preference shares BREE0.02/8TT 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each DRI ELR 2,500,000 50,000
2015 2014
—E-EE —E-IF
No. of shares No. of shares
IR & R &
(’000) RMB’ 000 ('000) RMB’000
() ARBTR (F) ARBT R
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE:
Ordinary shares ZEk
At 1 January ®B—A—H 10,408,272 205,526 10,408,272 205,526
Shares issued under share RERESET
option scheme BITZ 1D 610,800 9,633 - -
At 31 December Rt=ZR=+-—H 11,019,072 215,159 | 10,408,272 205,526
Convertible preference shares A& IR{E L IR
At 1 January/31 December W—A—8/
+=ZB=+-—H 11,298,810 190,567 11,298,810 190,567
Total at 31 December RTZA=+-8H
2 %R 22,317,882 405,726 21,707,082 396,093

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

EERFBEAZAURAKEIRRE
ZREARRARARRASEZEETR
—REE -FIEEBREARTZH
BEEZRRSH -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the total convertible
preference shares in issue included 1,518,807,075 Series
A convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B
convertible preference shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C
convertible preference shares and 2,211,382,609 Series D
convertible preference shares, respectively.

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In
addition, the holders of these shares have the right to
convert any preference share into the Company’s ordinary
shares at any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1
to 1 each subject to the minimum public float requirement
as set out under the Listing Rules being maintained.
Adjustments to the conversion price are only made upon
dilutive and other events which are related to the Company
issuing new shares or convertible debts.

On 21 May 2015, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of
HK$0.108 per share (equivalent to RMB0.085 per share)
to settle all the outstanding options granted on 24 May
2005. Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted
to HK$65,966,000 (equivalent to RMB52,021,000) out
of which HK$12,216,000 (equivalent to RMB9,633,000)
and HK$53,750,000 (equivalent to RMB42,388,000) were
recorded in share capital and share premium, respectively.
In addition, the share option reserve of RMB53,841,000
originally resulted from the issuance of the respective
share options was transferred to share premium
accordingly.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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(c) ZERBBRITRA (H)

RZE—HER-ZZFE—NE+ZA
=+—H > KRB ZEBTABRRKE
%R B8 2 B8 $51,518,807,0758%
AR5 IR B 5L AR ~ 3,897,110,334%
BZ 5 Al AR B 50 AR ~ 3,671,509,7648%
CR Y| A3 £ IR % 2,211,382,6098%

DA AR IRE LR ©

FETBRRELIRDAEZERER
ZBRG o WERDZHFBEAZHEE
BREFEAWBERRE ZEFR o it
S WERM 2FEATZEREM
R DL R E LS 1 S O E R R T
AEERAEDBDVEBER 2EF - 8

AN LETRAAESRELIR

ZHRE - RBREBEZRABIARNE TR
HMEAR QR BATH RN T RRER

=

R-ZE-AFERA=+—H AT
FHRER-_ZEEEFHEA-+ N
BREMATEZERE XQOF
LLERR0.108B T (HHENRERAER
#£0.0857T) ¥ 17610,800,660/% &
BREEC.02B T 2EBIR - 1T
3 i 18 71 78 7% %8 £65,966,00058 T
(% M A K #52,021,0005T)
F12,216,000/8 T (lHE R AR
9,633,0007T) K& 53,750,00058 Jt (48
£ A AR %42,388,0007T) 2 BlET A
BARBGEER 1 JRRETT
BE P FE 2 B PR 1% 1B A R #553,841,000

JC th AR FE ith 88 2= IR A0 VR B o
(d) EEZMHEREDN
(i) K& E

BROOBERZERATSRASH

B AT

RIBFFAERBEZDEE  RODE
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(e)

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the difference
between the Group’s share of the fair value of the
associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest
in associate at the date the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(s)(ii).
The share option reserve of RMB53,841,000 was
transferred to share premium upon the exercise of the
respective share options on 21 May 2015 as set out in
note 24(c).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside the PRC. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(w).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was HK$2,276,932,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,907,617,000) (2014: HK$2,681,660,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,115,541,000)) as computed in accordance with
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

24 A~ EERRE (&)

(d) REZMEEREHE)

(e)

(i) EfrtfE

BEREDRBEQTARD/EE
Be—ZXMEBLARER A&E
REBERNRME2EEFRDR
EEARERZBE QAR 2ER
E® e

(iii) FERIERFE

B PR RE 56 18 TO AR 1B B a1 (9) (i) B
MU ABERINZ2ETH
X BFAQRTREE 2ERIML
FIARTEBREHE 2 A RED
Re AR=ZZBE—RFRAZ=T+—
BiTERREMSEREREA
R #53,841,000T = R 17 %
B2 HIIRHE24(c) °

(iv) [EZ#E

ERREESmEEREREL
St b SE T 2 B SR 5 i A
ECERERE - HEREIIIRN
M1 (W) 2 R BURERE -

(NP g3

R-ZE-—ARAF+ZA=+—H 1R
BHEHBEZARLTE Btz
AHIRFARABRRZEES
2,276,932,0008 T (SR AR
1,907,617,0007T) (=& — [§ £ :
2,681,660,000/8 7t (HHMER AR
2,115,541,0007T)) °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(f) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital
structure to ensure it is in compliance with any loan
covenants. The Group was in compliance with the financial
covenants as at 31 December 2015. The Group also
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is
calculated by dividing bank and other loans by total equity.

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The basis
of eligibility of any of the eligible persons to the grant of options
shall be determined by the Board of directors from time to time
on the basis of their contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of the Group. The original share
option scheme (the “Original Scheme”) was effective during
the period of 10 years from 31 May 2002. On 22 June 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved to adopt a new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and to terminate the
Original Scheme. All options granted under the Original Scheme
prior to its termination will continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the Original Scheme. The New
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 22 June 2012
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The terms of the New Scheme and the Original Scheme are
similar. Under the terms of the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes, the maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be granted is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under the New Scheme and any other share
option schemes to each eligible participant within a 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the ordinary
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at any
time shall not exceed 30% of the ordinary shares in issue from
time to time.
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Board of directors, which is not later than ten years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier. No vesting period is set for each grant of
options.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
Board of directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Daily Quotation Sheets”) on the date of the
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Both the exercise price and the number of securities comprised
in each option outstanding are subject to adjustments in the
event of capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division or
consolidation of shares or reduction of capital.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme to date.
The number and exercise prices of share options of the Original

Scheme at 31 December are as follows, whereby all options are
settled by physical delivery of shares:

25

LR BEREEZRS
(%)

ARATRBERERHEARAEABR
> WAXNEEREI0ET - KHEBR
B2 TEHRAESERTE  BEFERER
HEREERRBZ T FRFEEHA (0
BE) BRABRHZBEREGEREY -

BREZITEERESSRE  HETAURK
RUTzE8SE  ((REBEREER > &
NAIZBRMIRBEEEBHERZERALF
BHeBHENXR(BHEBNKR]) 2B
B RiA2BAZBRONEAEBNLERR
REBREERARAERS A 2K
B Ri)RAR 2RO EE -

Hﬁ@%%*?iﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ%&%%

HEAREARERS 7 B - DIFHEHR
1D SR ERE A (TR -

ERAE BECABRERHTTETE
& o

RTZA=1+—8 R8I zBREHE

RATEERHINT - MAAEBRESTNUE
PRAE

2015 2014
%-1f “E-pf
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price share options price share options
1RE BREHR ke BREHE
Options granted RuzERE

- on 24 May 2005 -RZEERERAZTMA - - HK$0.1080}8 ¢ 610,800,660

Equivalent to BER - RMBAR0.0857C

The above options vested immediately from the date of
grant and with a contractual life of 10 years. Each option
entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. During the year ended 31 December 2015, all the
above outstanding share options were exercised at the price
of HK$0.1080 per share (equivalent to RMBO0.085 per share).
There are no other unexercised share options outstanding at 31
December 2015.

DEERERKRHERRINBESES

ZHFHAETF -BRERELFEFEEA
RBAQNT—REBEBRZEFR BEZZF
—AFE+ZA=+—HIEZEER UL
FMEMARTE2ERE  UTHEESR
0.1080/& 7t (HHE RN T IR A K¥0.0857T)
EEHTE R-E-RE+=ZA=+—
B> ARaEEMERITEZERE -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit,

liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk in respect of trade receivables is limited as the
balances mainly arise from credit card sales. Credit terms
of 30 to 90 days are offered in rare cases to corporate
customers with ongoing relationship.

The Group grants 60 days to WSL and its related entities
for store merchandise sales to them.

As set out in note 30(b), the Group had receivables due
from WSL and its related entities and other subsidiaries
and associates of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited (“CPG”), the ultimate holding company, amounting
to approximately RMB319.6 million (2014: RMB518.5
million) as at 31 December 2015, which represents
approximately 43.4% (2014: 63.6%) of the Group’s total
trade and other receivables. Given CPG is the Company’s
ultimate holding company, the directors consider that
these amounts are fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other receivables.
Cash and deposits are placed with banks which the
directors consider have sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations and
committed future capital expenditures as and when they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,910.1 million (2014:
RMB1,603.8 million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F-BF+-A=t-ALFE(RSARBN UARBTRELD)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26 cRIEAMREER A AE(E)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REE SRR ()

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2016, which was
prepared based on historical cash requirements of the
Group which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of
the opinion that the assumptions which are included in the
cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject
to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of
these assumptions may not be realised.

Based on the cash flow forecast prepared and the letter
of support provided by the ultimate holding company
(note 1(b)), the directors have determined that adequate
liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital
expenditure requirements of the Group for the forthcoming
year.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

RERMBHRERF  EBCEREAE
EEE—_Z-—"F+-A=1+—-HL
TZERZRERERR - LLIIRE
FEEBEIRESFRMARELELE
BARF+—ERHEzEEMRER -
EERRERNASRBER MRS

BEE - AW IEEBEARIERZ
B (REBEEF2ZRERANZE) -
ETHE2BUERRIATSER -

RBEEREZRSABERBERMAE
RIRAFRMN RS EE (HE
1b)  EBRAXEE>FDHES
EURGAF2ERRERAKME
ER

UTHEMEEzRIHMR - Bk
SRS NRRMBREE R 2R

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

FNFERB ML
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-ER% -E#B  WERE
BEH MER LER LE# a8 BHE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETRT AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tn ARETR
31 December 2015 “E-Ef+-R=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities £ IEz¢RERE
Bank loans RITER (307,131)  (350,858) (466,413 - (1,124402) 1,041,978
Other loans EtEH (44,418) - - - (44,418) 43,500
Notes payable, creditors BHZE  EAFE
and accrued charges REMRGER (3,625,166) - - - (3,625,166) 3,625,166
Amounts due to related ERAELERAE
companies (139,565) - - - (139,565) 139,565
Obligations under finance leases ~ BWEREE( (25,620) (26,035) (79.641)  (123,373) (254,669 163,679
(41419000  (376,893)  (546,054)  (123373) (5,188,220 5,013,888
31 December 2014 ZE-ME+ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ##T4IEz¢RERE
Bank loans RITER (161,782)  (286,184) (766,653 - (1,214,619 1,103,265
Other loans EtEH (721) (41,682) - - (42,403) 40,961
Notes payable, creditors BHZE  EAFE
and accrued charges REMRGER (3,448,912) - - - (3448912) 3448912
Amounts due to related ERRELERAE
companies (108,243) - - - (108,243) 108,243
Obligations under finance leases ~ BWEREE( (25,620) (25,620) (78,844) (150,205 (280,289) 172,647
(3745278)  (353486)  (845,497)  (150,205)  (5,094,466) 4,874,028

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c)

26 TRIEREER A AEE)

Interest rate risk (c) FI=REBs
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEHRE
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates AREBFRIEZRZKEERE » =
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash ERFIARER2HESNEAESE
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans, other 2 BEEZRITER  RTE
loans, and obligations under finance leases. M oHMERRREHREER -
The following table details the interest rate profile of TREVNAREBNRRETRR 2 &
the Group’s net borrowings (interest-bearing liabilities EFE (MEAEHRMEB®
less interest-bearing financial investments excluding RE (MREARMEEESH
cash held for short-term working capital purposes) at WETiEE 2R E)) 2FZER -
the end of the reporting period.
2015 2014
ZE-1f —E-mF
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
BURIE FEE BaH= REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Variable rate instruments: EFBHANEIA:
Pledged bank deposits BEAZBIRER 1.04% 59,436 2.14% 71,881
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEH 0.38% 146,224 0.39% 121,668
Bank loans RITER 4.10% (1,041,978) 3.76% (1,103,265)
Other loans HEH 2.11% (43,500) 1.76% (40,961)
(879,818) (950,677)
Fixed rate instruments: EEMNEIA:
Obligations under finance leases MEHESH 9.8%-10.03% (163,679) | 9.8%-10.03% (172,647)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i)  BUBRE ST

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a change
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s net loss and retained profits by the amounts

RZZE—HF+=A=+—8"

HEFERZI100EEE 2 E (B
B E2REZH#FTTE) KL
/RO ARERz EEFERR

shown below: BRfEHENT
2015 2014
—E-EE —E-E
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARETT

Variable rate instrument: FERERIA:

100 basis point increase 1 H01001E £ 2 8,798 9,507
100 basis point decrease BA100EE B (8,798) (9,507)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

Currency risk

The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations
are all based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to
significant currency risk in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from
bank loans held by certain PRC subsidiaries, which
are denominated in USD. At 31 December 2015, the
relevant bank loans amounted to USD137,920,000 (2014:
USD154,960,000). The Group used a forward exchange
contract to economically hedge the currency risk of the
above bank loans. Changes in the fair value of the forward
exchange contract are recognised in profit or loss. The
net fair value of the forward exchange contract at 31
December 2015 is RMB75,770,000, which is recognised
as “derivative financial instruments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The forward exchange
contract has maturity of less than one year after the end of
the reporting period.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.

26 cRIEREER A AER)

(c)

(d)

ARk ()
(i) SBED T ()

PAE 7 R E 7 AT R B A R R 3R
EEE2ERNERCEFEZER
TARAFNZEAR sHE-F
—mFZEEREE -

SME L B

ESARFEEZTEXER LR
TR AERERETEXBHREEKN
51 EE LB e

AEEZMERBEFERES THE
MEBABUETAEEENRTE
HeRZE—HFE+ZA=+—8H"
1HE 2 R1ITERA137,920,000E T
—E— % : 154,960,000%E JT) °
AEBFER-—EIERHRSHIEE
HE )R EMRITER 2 INERME
NERBFENADABZEHERIN
BERN WN-E—FHFE+=-A=+—
H > HMERBEHNLIAFEAARYE
75,770,000 T 1E 45 & BF 5 AR S #R 3%
AREZAITESH T A | - hINE
EHEANRBREPREREONR—F
AEIER -

AR¥NFERELEE R DEBA
RARRRE BRI R EE R Z A5
WEST - MEERZERI RS 2 HER
pEAKERERHIEFERRAE
B ARERERRANMEIRERE o
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BE-Z-AS+-A=+-HEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEMN)
26 TEIEREER A E(E)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

¥

oF

(e) Fair value measurement (e) 2RfEZ

N
o

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value () BARETEZ2HEERAE

At 31 December 2015, the Group has certain
derivative financial instruments - exchange forward
contract, which is measured at fair value. When
measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in
level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

The fair value measurement of the forward exchange
contract as at 31 December 2015 is categorised into
Level 2 fair value measurement and is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate offered by issuance
bank. The Group did not hold any other financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27 £ EMRE 2 &L
As lessee BAEEAN

At 31 December 2015, total future minimum lease payments J}A— —FRFE+=-H=+—H8 ' Ao BUH

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: BHECARREKEEENNIELLZ

ZZDT :

2015 2014
—E-HE —E-—mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Within 1 year —FR 583,871 464,732
After 1 year but within 5 years —F#EREFR 477,912 418,646
After 5 years hFE#% 13,034 16,497
1,074,817 899,875

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
and store premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period up to 20 years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 1 to 7 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The store leases typically provide the Group with the ability
to cancel the leases within the lease period on payment of a
penalty and/or after a minimum period of leasing.

As lessor

Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the
year amounted to approximately RMB432,125,000 (2014:
RMB413,500,000).

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as

AEBEDETHLAERIERYE 2EER
EFRAAN - HE-RZNBHAIEE—1
FOUIRBEIMARREGE RERMR
H-HENRBEEE-—ELFEMURKR
rh%*ﬁﬁ%ﬂklﬁ ISR ERERENAE

c ERHEBERASENEERNAL
EZHE?J%'(&/ZSZEAE%MEE,HJM&—JHLE#H
%0

BHEA

RER AEBzHEYWERS KA
R 2 %Hﬁ«w%ﬁiéé’ﬂ%k&ﬁ%
432,125,000t (ZZE—MFE: AR¥

413,500,0007T) °

E’\_q EFE+=A=1t—8  FAHH
BHEZRREEEWEERIRRER

follows: ZZIJT :
2015 2014
—E-HE —E-—mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BT ARBT T
Within 1 year —FR 190,133 186,532
After 1 year but within 5 years —F#EREFR 121,254 96,470
After 5 years hFE#% 45,165 22,667
356,552 305,669

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

As lessor (Continued)

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 2
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the tenants have commitments to pay
additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain sub-
leased properties if the turnover generated from those sub-
leased properties exceeds the predetermined levels. Contingent
rentals are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

27 € EHE 2 AE (E)

RHBA (H&)

HE- RV RBA=ZBAZEME » LK
BAE® F)’Tﬁﬂ%?)’(%ﬁ%ﬁ% il o Br LA
REZREBEESFTIN  BEFTHEVEE
EFEZE%%@E@?E\EZ7}<$H§ FAF
AHBBREERE A T AN A
& o HARBETGHABABENESRE UL
ZEELARBESARE -

BAESE

R-ZZ2-_AF+-A=1+—R0 REEY
BHREERBEBERAENT ¢

2015 2014
—E-HE —E-mE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AREBT T AREEF T

Contracted for [EHES) 59,849 18,898
Authorised but not contracted for EHEEBRTH 840,034 273,352
899,883 292,250

All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation
work on existing stores.

29 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the
employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month per employee. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several
defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by PRC municipal governments in regions where the major
operations of the Group are located. The Group is required
to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 13%
to 21% (2014: 12% to 21%) of salary costs including certain
allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled
to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
at the retirement date. The retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired staff of the Group are assumed by
these schemes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The Group entered into the following material transactions (a)

30 EXHBALZRS

with entities controlled by, or related to, the ultimate

holding company, CPG, during the year.

ZIKEIEAEWEEEE%?N“
B HEZEECEARZUT °

R A BICPG

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARBT R
Continuing related party transactions BFEHBALZRS
(note (i)): (BEEQ)
Store merchandise sold to WSL féﬁrﬁﬁﬁ fmTFWSLE E 88
and its related entities f1oE S 991,377 1,005,270
Store merchandise purchased from High B B8 J5 # 7 M B High Orient
Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) Enterprises Limited ([HOEL J)
and its related entities REMBEEXE 97,078 146,914
Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial HEWRABLABERHEE
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. BRAG(ERBE] R
(“CTCREM”) and its subsidiary HHE AR 7,293 8,566
Rental expenses to HEZHIZAF
- Shanghai Kinghill Limited (“SKL”) - LEFRERBRAF
[LEFz=]) 18,000 18,000
- Anhui Zhengtong Enterprises Co., Ltd. ~RBEMBRERAF 8,384 6,288
- Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. -BLERREHERRLT 8,198 375
- Shantou Xinping Investment —WEREFEREEN
Consultation Co., Ltd. BROA 14,930 -

Master trademark fee paid to CPG THEEAXMAFCPG 879 816

Other related party transactions (note (ii)): E B A £z 5 (K (i) :

Reimbursement of staff costs (note (iii) BERARIE (M (i) 16,145 14,367

Allocation of administrative expenses at cost  {THE BUK A D BEFWSLE E

to WSL and its related entities (note (iii)) TR 1 2 (P EE (i) 9,826 11,010

Guarantee fee payable to EREAINTERGRT

Zheng Xin Bank Co., Ltd. ERAF 525 -
Training expense to Nanjing Tech iﬁﬁ'l%ﬁliﬁ%ﬁ:‘ilﬁﬁg
University Pujiang Institute 2R - 2,377

Notes: ik

i)  These related party transactions constitute continuin () HWEHEEAALzXZERLTRA

v connected transgctigns as defined in Chapter 14A of thg LUAETEE T ZHBBER S RA
Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the AECETRIE EmRAE14AE 2
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of BERE U X FCPG2E
the Listing Rules. In addition, master trademark fee paid to BEEARETRAE14AETEER
CPG is exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter RIBE -
14A of the listing rules.

(i) These related party transactions constitute connected (i) WEHEEAAL 2R Z B LHRA
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, FUASEETZBERS - R
however they are exempt from the disclosure requirements in REDRAUFIVAATTERBINE -
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

i) The employment contracts of certain individuals who (i) HETERAEEIT/FERBWSLE

w previouslloy v)\//orked for the Group but now work for WSL %*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ&l{Z’}_\i‘_gE{E
and its related entities on a full-time basis remained with .:.,%91}}1%55754‘2!&% ° QW-E‘IE
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals were EERANBEWSLE 247 Eﬁﬁ%i&ﬁ
reimbursed by WSL and its related entities to the Group. TAEE o NHE4(0)HEZREMK
Total staff costs disclosed in note 4(b) are stated net of such BB MBRZRE -
reimbursement.

Further, following the organisation restructuring in 2013, th o BN =T —=F 2 REE
(tal;oup? t’srge)lrgst fgrtai_lghgd?in?sir%iveeze&icgs vgvtith V\?Sif‘aglg g%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%SLgx%%%%@
i iti i = o REE B
o WSL and its related entifies on a gost basis, el m WS SR £ % 2

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

30 EXAHBALZRS (&)

(b) The Group had the following balances with related

(c)

(b) AEMMEREBADEERMT

companies:

2015 2014
—B-EF —ZT-|mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET R ARBET

Due from related companies FEWHEREAsERE
— WSL and its related entities —WSLk iR b % 315,152 517,425
- HOEL and its related entities —HOELKk EMERE b 422 311
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —~EXEERENEB QA 4,074 665
- Other related companies —Hih BRI - 78
319,648 518,479

Due to related companies ESHEESERE
- CPG —CPG 915 812
— WSL and its related entities —~WSLK HEAERBEEE 85,736 70,701
- HOEL and its related entities —HOELK EBE % 22,559 21,452
- SKL and its subsidiaries -t EFHERENB AR 30,073 14,996
— Other related companies —HihHRI % 282 282
139,565 108,243

(c) EEEEBEAEMS

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

disclosed in note 6, is as follows:

FEBTEEBASZME - BEK
BN TARRAESZEHE

W

2015 2014

—®2-IfF —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR T ARBT T

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 24,112 27,502
Post-employment benefits S EIEET 30 40
Termination benefits ERRIEFE - -
Equity compensation benefits ERRERA - -
24,142 27,542

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

4(b)).
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BE-Z-HF+-A=+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

31 DISPOSAL OF SEVEN STORES TO WSL ST R=-ZE—NFE@WSLHE L

IN 2014

On 14 March 2014, the Company entered into an agreement
to dispose of seven stores and the Group’s equity interest in
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries in the PRC (collectively, the
“Disposal Group”) to WSL, a related company of the Company,
for a consideration of approximately RMB231.2 million. The
disposal was completed on 30 April 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the above subsidiaries
and stores in the Disposal Group contributed approximately
RMB201.6 million to the Group’s revenue and accounted for
approximately RMB33.9 million of the Group’s net loss.

This transaction constituted a connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The major classes of assets and liabilities in the Disposal Group
as at the date of disposal were as follows:

K E

RZZE-—NEFE=F+WHE  XQAEH
EUH ARM231,200,000 2 REBEHE
tREHRAEERTEETE2ERBL
AeRAERE (KBIHEAS]) F4AA
T2 HEETEWSL HEBR=-Z—NF
ME=+HZXK -

BEZZ—NF+-A=1+—HILFE>
LEHEAERZHB LR REHERSE
Z U A8 AR #201,600,0007T & A &
21884 AR %33,900,0007T °

XZRELTRIEI4AZEETCH
B—EHBEEXZRARACETRELD
BAE1AAT 2 RBERE -

REERH  HEHERZETEEERE
BEBIMT :

RMB’ 000
AR T
Property, plant and equipment (note 9(a)) Y EERRE (M) 217,210
Intangible assets (note 10) mREE (MEE10) 13,271
Goodwill (note 11) P (MaE11) 242,500
Inventories 78 63,151
Trade and other receivables EENREMERRE 4,896
Cash and cash equivalents BHeERBELEEH 5,198
Trade and other payables EiEREMENTIE (312,000)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 23(b)) IEERLE & & (M 5E23(b)) (3,318)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 230,908
Gain on disposal (note 3) HE ZaF (MEE3) 294
Cash consideration receivable EWIE SR ERE 231,202
An analysis of the net inflow of ERLECHERBEEEERA
cash and cash equivalents in FREOMWMT
respect of the disposal is as follows:
Consideration received, satisfied in cash EWREREUR AR WE 16,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HECZRERESEHE (5,198)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EHHECHERBESEH
in respect of the disposal RAFEE 10,802

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&s&ETEH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 5 B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTHREN)

32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

32 A1 F BB AR &

31 December | 31 December
2015 2014
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
M &E AR¥ TR ARBT T

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -EERKE 1,296 190
Interests in subsidiaries Ft B Al R = 2,797,484 3,083,361
Other long-term prepayments HihREIFEREA 1,590 2,080
2,800,370 3,085,631

Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables EE R HMEWRE 93,451 13,307
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRhBESEE 23,566 12,024
117,017 25,331
Current liabilities REaE

Trade and other payables EEREMESRIE 473,167 442,579
Bank loans RITEX 36,595 17,229
Other loans HitnE X 16,264 15,315
526,026 475,123
Net current liabilities REBEETFE (409,009) (449,792)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 2,391,361 2,635,839

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans IRITEX 109,786 137,835
109,786 137,835
NET ASSETS EEFRE 2,281,575 2,498,004

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE
Share capital i) 24(c) 405,726 396,093
Reserves 1 24(a) 1,875,849 2,101,911
TOTAL EQUITY A 2,281,575 2,498,004

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 February 2016.

Soopakij Chearavanont
#;EA
Director

EFE
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33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANIES

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements
available for public use.

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. Notes 11 and 26 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment and financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,910.1 million. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements using
a going concern basis. Further details are set out in
notes 1(b) and 26(b). Should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern, all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities would have to be stated at net realisable
value. In particular, the non-current assets and the non-
current liabilities would have to be reclassified as current
assets and current liabilities respectively and provision for
contingent liabilities may be required as a result.
(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of the
assets and their residual values, if any. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

33

34

EERBRERAT

R-ZZE-AF+ZA=1+—-H EFR
ARARNAcEEBEERATDARKEBHE
BREBEFMMR I 2C.P. Holding (BVI)
Investment Company Limited » & &%
R DT AR ZEBE & ML ZCharoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited ° It
ERNFAMEALARATIMER 2 B KR

%o

B b AT K

I RABS WS EFMG - LRBBEL
BRkAMEZET BEERLEEATYH
AREBHHEARKSE - EEMGES Y
BHRER  FEE2EZBEERSTH
RZEE FEZSBREAZHAEHRE
AAMEE  RBESREHRERER
BEoHRBE - MFE11R26BEEERE
HENEBMTAZBRRRAZTERRBRE
ZEHR - A THBEZ 2 ER KR
mE

(a) BHELKE
RATRZESHAEBZARREBE
2 (BEFEBZRBEEFEIA
F#1,910,100,0007T) EEHFAZ
B EERAUBEKREE LR
KREBEE - E—PHBERNME
1(b) % 26(b) ° A E B E L EEIFE
e KEBzMEEEREBEER
AERFRESR c LEHRFRBEE
RERBEESHNESEERDEE
RRBaE T aFEELERERA
afEo

ME- -FERRBINE

ME- -FERRBETRMAFERE
& BAESTERFHUERERE -
FEEEBFENEE 2L ERAFHY
REEE (WF) - EAFHDREAR
SEHBLUEEZBEIEREE - 4
BEGTHREREER  ARHH
ZIERXEFURE -

(b)
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34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land, goodwill
and other non-current assets may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts
of these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, except for goodwill which is tested annually
for impairment. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate selling prices because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and amount of operating costs.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2015, the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses carried forward
of certain PRC subsidiaries, as set out in note 23 (b).
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised. In
assessing the need to recognise a deferred tax asset,
management considers all available evidence, including
projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies,
historical taxable income, and the expiration period of the
losses carried forward. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits are less than expected, a reversal of a
deferred tax asset may arise, which will be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes
place.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

BJBEHEMERARBE=ZF
—BEFE+=-A=+—HLHF
EER BT HEIRRE
BougEye®

HENBRAMBRE2AHR/IL  FBS
R AEE RS ISR R ER - K
ARBE-Z-—AF+-A=1+—HLF
BE A R I RIS B 3R O ERAR ©

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

RETHERRINREN

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
HKFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification
of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, Agriculture:
Bearer plants

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity method in separate
financial statements

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28,
Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BRMBRERA-F-FECR
BRUBREENZUS HEELES

BREBREEAZ R (BTX)
WBASEBEENEH %

EREEAE16% (B 4) REBETEN
B30% BENERBENTRZ %

ERSHENSI16% (BTE)
REBSHRASNR BX LELEY

B ERES E P ACHE IR
BUiBFE 2R s

BEMBRERAZ 08 (B A)  FRUMBRELNZ S
RERETENERE KEEE FEFLHEA

BREHENSIR (BTR)  29HF
ERUBRERAZ T KEEEL O U
BRUHREENES £HIA

-MERR EEME 1 January 2016 “2-7E-B-A
1 January 2016 ZE-7§-f-H
1 January 2016 —E-RE-f-H
1 January 2016 ZE-7E-B-A
1 January 2016 “E-RE-f-R
1 January 2016 ZE-7E-B-A
1 January 2016 “E-RE-f-H
1 January 2016 ZE-7§-f-H
1 January 2018 -NE-f-8
1 January 2018 “E-N\E-f-H
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

In addition, the International Accounting Standards Board
issued a new standard, IFRS 16, Leases, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. We expect that
the HKICPA will issue the equivalent standard soon to maintain
convergence with IFRSs. IFRS 16 provides comprehensive
guidance for the identification of lease arrangements and
their treatment by lessees and lessors. In particular, IFRS
16 introduces a single lessee accounting model, whereby
assets and liabilities are recognised for all leases, subject to
limited exceptions. It replaces IAS 17, Leases and the related
interpretations including IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease. The Group is the lessee in
respect of a number of store premises and warehouses to
operate hypermarket stores in the PRC and has rental income
from subletting of the Group’s leased property. The new lease
accounting standard is expected to have significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position. The
Group is still in the process of making a detailed assessment of
what the impact of the new standard is expected to be in the
period of initial application.
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBME

™

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(UMAR¥THREN)
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group forthe ZAEBEBELZTEVBEEvXE - EERER
last five financial years is as follows: MEWT :
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
=%2--% -F--F Z%-Zf -Z-NF | ZF-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARET ARET AR®TR
RESULTS 4
Revenue PN 10,019,305 10,677,425 10,881,553 10,911,966 10,660,452
Profit/(loss) before taxation BELARA (BE) 34,686 (324,494) (21,121) (23,472) 153
Income tax B (10,926) (67,145) (75,801) (34,972) (18,224)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERRN/ (FR) 23,760 (391,639) (96,922) (58,444) (18,071)
Attributable to: VR AT EESE
Equity shareholders AARRRE
of the Company 23,813 (391,530) (96,837) (58,428) (17,958)
Non-controlling interests FERER (53) (109) (85) (16) (113)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERR/ (FE) 23,760 (391,639) (96,922) (58,444) (18,071)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEE 6,909,213 7,717,340 7,631,416 6,945,156 7,127,637
Total liabilities BEr (4,906,728) (5,644,600) (5,561,900) (4,935,041) (5,077,616)
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,002,485 2,072,740 2,069,516 2,010,115 2,050,021
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR G
Total equity attributable to AARRREM
equity shareholders R
of the Company 2,000,538 2,070,902 2,067,763 2,008,378 2,048,397
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,947 1,838 1,753 1,737 1,624
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 2,002,485 2,072,740 2,069,516 2,010,115 2,050,021
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Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information

MBEBERKRRESR
T2

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2016 —ZE—<EHBER

Annual Results announced 29 February 2016
EAMMZEEFEE —E-REZA=t+HhH
Annual General Meeting June 2016
BREBFAE ZE-XRFERA
2016 Interim Results August 2016
—E-REHHEE —E-RENA
Financial year end 31 December
MBEFEELRER +=-A=+—H
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION JRXR&E R
Share Capital % 74 Nominal value
HE Number of
As at 31 December 2015 HK$ shares HK$’ 000
R-ZZE—HF+=-A=+—8H BT iz & FHET
Ordinary Shares % & %
Authorised £ 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up B #{T R # 2 0.02 11,019,072,390 220,381
Series A Convertible Preference Shares A% 5l Al & R 8 £ IR
Authorised % E 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 3T R & 2" 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares BZ 3 A # KR8 TR
Authorised £ & 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B #1T R 2* 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares C#Z 5l A& R & &£ %
Authorised 3% E 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 21Tk #2** 0.02 3,671,509,764 73,430
Series D Convertible Preference Shares DX 5| o[ I} 8 % B%
Authorised £ & 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 1T R # 2" 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228
* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited * II?ﬂCtPoﬁH%dmg (BVI) Investment Company
Imitedssr
**  Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public . HC.P. HoIding %BVI) Investment Company
Limited & A B

Shareholding R 2 % of issued

share capital
As at 31 December 2015 Number of shares BEITRA
R=ZZE—-HF+=RBA=+—8 % & ZEDH
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited 6,788,319,021 61.61%
Public & Others AR &k HAh 4,230,753,369 38.39%
TOTAL ## 11,019,072,390 100%

Stock Code K #H K

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BB 00121
Reuters Reuters 0121 HK
Bloomberg Bloomberg 121 HK

i

Request for Feedback RER

E=11T3

i)
i

Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.com for any comments on our MEARBZLAERBFEEEMER » FE

public announcements and disclosures. Zcontact@cplotuscorp.com °
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